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FEBRUARY 14, 2001
COURT RECONVENED WITHOUT THE JURY

THE COURT: Good ﬁorning. All right, Mr. Wetle, are you
ready to call Ms. Kerpin for our evidence rule hearing?

MR. WETLE: Yes, your Honor; We had-- I know there was
some question that the court had as to the source of informa-
tion for Mr. Murphy.

THﬁ COURT: Right, but if you’re not going to call Mr.
Murphy, I’m not going to consider that. |

MR. WETLE: Actually, his statement wouldn’t be consid-
ered,:but the fact of the statement in the overall context, I
think, goes to the preponderance. . But because I thought
that-- As the coﬁrt looks at the whole picture, you’re going
to need to make a decision on whether there’s a prepondefance
and how that came about, I thought might be helpful to the
court{ i

TﬁE COURT:' I think i‘have to do that though on competent
evidence. That is to say, nonfhearsay evidence.

MR. WETLE: For a 104 hearing?

THE COURT: I think so. Well, you’re right. The evidence
rules don’t apply to that, do they?

MR. WETLE: No.

THE COURT: All right. Is that something that Ms. Kerpin

is going to be testifying about then?

MR. WETLE: Yes. She’ll testify that she had contacted

l
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BrianfMurphy and that was sort of the beginning, and then the
cburt had the-- The preliminary question in your mind
yesterday was just how did Brian Murphy get that inforﬁation.
You kr:llow, how did he get in the loop. And then what happened
was then Kim Kerpin--

TﬁE COURT: Does Ms. Kerpin know-- I mean, in other
words{ did he tell her?

MR. WETLE: I don’t believe he told her how he knew that,
but hé'might have, I don’t know. 1I’1l1l have to ask her.

Yes, she says that she does know how he learned it.

THE COURT: Okay. All right, then, we’ll Jjust hear from
her, just to save some time then.

MR. WETLE: All right.

| WITNESS IS SWORN
MICROPHONE IS ADJUSTED

THE COURT: Give us your name, please, and spell your last
name for the record. |

Mé. KERPIN: 1It'’s Kimberly Kerpin, K-E-R-P-I-N.

TéE COURT: All right, and your current address?

MS. KERPIN: 10730 Thornmint Road, San Diego, California
92127.

T&E COURT: Thank you. Mr. Wetle?

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.

1222.
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KIMBERLY KERPIN Being first duly sworn, on

BY

Q.

i oath testified as follows:
\ DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. WETLE:

Ms. Kerpin, after June 11th, the year 2000, did you begin
t% search for and inquire about the whereabouts of Josh
Schaefer, the man ?ou were living with and the father of
your child?

Yes.

A#d in the course of trying to locate him, did you contact
a |Brian Murphy?

Yés, I did.

And had you ever met Brian Murphy, or do you know who he
is, or--

No.

How did you know to contact him?

Joshua’s father, Tom, actually found out from the. police
iﬁ Seattle that Nick was living with Brian, and we_got the
number-ahd -I-actually called him:to-see what was going on,
ang;hegsﬁéxted;toqtel1,me;;you;kngw1;§QQut:Nick*and;what
gibk:was:really;doingx,hAngﬂliﬁygg;KQQELﬂmentigngg;abQQE
the. girlfriend, his girlfriend Shauna, and I.said Nick'had
ﬁgkd;us:it,wassz;;hephad:ggttenvin;trauble:formaimarijuéﬂa

charge:n

That’s -what -he- told you and Josh?

Kimberly Kerpin - Direct, ER 104 hearing (by Mr. Wetle)1223.
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A.

Q.

A.

A.

Q.

A.

¥&s—Uh=hHGH">
Ahd his girl--
Léca&—copswfor~marijuana;”,So*he;said‘hisﬂgirlfriénda—
And he-had been calling us  for-like a month, and- he was 3

redlly ~upset, and “we only had voice ma11 'S0 he “was,

&eaviﬁi—ﬁ“'messages sa?iﬁg‘*you"know;:IFm~teally—upset
abewbgthr5f~~ny—glrlfrxendfbroke up-with-me-over—this
erijuana—ehargeif{lﬁi?éaxiy:upset7ryeuzgggg1::L:mgan:we
wereﬂlrke*praYIﬁ@‘féf‘Hiﬁ“B‘éﬁﬁse*Wé“feIt‘bad“*andn‘_;:Iﬁm
SOTEYP.

i THE COURT: Wait for a question, if you would.

And so you finally-- Josh - then decided to go up to
Seattle? , ‘ |
ﬁh—huh.

And to be with Nick?

ﬁight.

And then you’d been in regular contact with Nick for--
I mean Josh on a daily basis?

¥eah.

?hen he left?

# left like two days before Josh came up here to meet Nick
to go to my parents’ house, and Josh was actually supposed
to come with me, but he didn’t, and he was going to come
a week later. and-all-of—a-sudden—he called-me,~he’s

tike;—well,- “NICK—reaiIY“needs:me7:11m-g01ng~te—ge»up and,

Kimberly Kerpin - Direct, ER 104 hearing (by Mr. Wetle)1l224.
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A.
Q.

A.

A.

ggltﬁifﬁiéfbartéffféffflEI?was like okay, you know, if
that’s really what you want to do, go ahead, I‘ll see you

ih a couple days. AadshéIWEs:aetué%%y:goinq:tczfiyzcutb
=up=heré?2356=thatis:what:iimatjkhiu

ASo he~--

|
And-_then-he—called-me—Tike—every-day-on-Nick’s phone;—on=.

Nieck4s—cell—phones—Heé called—me=like-three-times-a—days
And then the last time you heard from him was Saturday,
June 10th?

qh—huh. Like 8:00 in the morning.

And then--

Eight-twenty.

--what happened? And then onlMonday, June 12th, you
didn’t hear-- you hadn’t heard from him since?

Huh—uh.

And so at that time you get ahold of Mr. Schaefer and--

I actually waited 1like till Tuesday to contact. then,
1cause I thought maybe-- You know, I just gave him a
couple days. Mainly thought they were just hanging out,
%hatever. But yeah, after like two days I started to

&orry, 'cause he, you know-- Like that’s the first time

we’d ever been apart. .

okay . And after-- From then you and Mr. Schaefer were
|

able to get ahold of Mr. Murphy?

Uh-huh.

Kimberly Kerpin - Direct, ER 104 hearing (by Mr. Wetle)1225.
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Q. So—when—you—called-Mr-—Murphy;—what—did—Mr-—Murphy—tell.,
yoU-about Shauna Daniels? |
A. Wwﬂmwhmwge started-
“o—Yaugh—at-fmez —You know, he wasnizig“aﬁﬁt°*“Knd“he*sv
Ltke“=?fHé?§aId7tyoufknow;fNick%s—infariot?more:treubletb
than-that. You know, he kinda told me about what he was™®
cupﬁto:and:whatfhetwésfdoinq?iaﬁaiﬁé‘EEYﬂ¥T:WeliT:Shauna
told-me—that I-had—a restrain-— that™ “she has~a~-restrain-
dmgfordeﬁfagainsthickfbecause~she'got*afgunfputtte:her
head-in—Portland;—and said-if you’re ever with Nick you’re

goingfto—dier~fAnd-SO"that*s*why--* And—-at-that-point-she

was-not-even--—she wasn’t at her house. "Like to contact
her—JI—had--to-callher mother; —and -then-her-mother got
Qnoldmof—herT—andfshewcaIledwme*at—my~parentsL~housé.

Q. ﬁnd when you talked to Shauna, what did Shauna tell you
%bout-— Did-she tell you-what Nick was. really doing?

A. Jh-huh: —Yeah: |

Q. -And-what did she-say?-

A. —She-said—he-had gotten in trouble -for-LSD;, and-that they
got-caught actually, you know, making it or doing it; and
that-she had_got a gun put to her head an and she was -really

c~scaréd?’
<PHE=COURT:——=I‘m-sorry, she what?— ; Z o
A. -She—got—a gun put—to- her-head—in—Portland; she-said;—by—a=

qe-u—pite:guy-sf,:a:nd:they:s-aid::i:.f:y_euir_e:eve-r.:with:N;iek:yguirg>

Kimberly Kerpin - Direct, ER 104 hearing (by Mr. Wetle)1226.
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going-to-dieT—Ana-she-was-reatly-scared-at—thatpoiRt=

Q. Did you ever-- So that was the first time that you talked
to her? |

A. Yes.

Q. Apd did you then talk to her at.a later date?

A. I did. Uh-huh.

Q. ‘éég:mhatzweretthetcircumstances:ggz:ﬁhat:catkz::Dgzypu
recall?

A. Wells—yeah+——T—asked—her—if—=she—thought—there was-_any,

reason—that they could—possibly-——you Know, if somebody-—

masc£ea%&¥:a§ter:fﬁéhT—’Ybﬁ—RHOWT‘ffztHéy:couid:have:been
in==—-sif-Nick—wWas—really in-trouble;—and-if—she-thought>
that:theretwaSTa:pessibiiity:thatzsemething:could:happen;>
g%d:she:was:tike7:wéil7:yeah;:you:knOW7:and:then:::;ﬂeliq
aétuailyffﬁﬁttwasfthe:first:ETﬁéjﬁéffﬁTﬁéa?::Kﬁafthen:we
talked—agair--
Q. &Yé_@lebody:r-eafﬂ-y-—_afte.r:me;g»._:—xgmgén;@_f—g%mén.L:f;rom
the-people—in-the-drug—industry?-
A. _Yeah.~Uh=huh.™ |
% MR. SIMEONE: What was that question? I’m sorry, I
didn’t that.
' THE COURT: I didn’t get it either.
MR. WETLE: c<By-people being afterthem;, was—it-people

| e .
—in—thé drug industry that were—after—them?-—And-I-think

Kimberly Kerpinﬁ- Direct, ER 104 hearing (by Mr. Wetle)1l227.
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THE COURT: Okay.

A. Yeah, because I had no idea. I thought he was just on a
marijuana charge.l-That's the first time I had learned
that helhad actualiy been in troﬁbie for LSD.

Q. So you had a chance to talk to her later? ‘

A. Yeah. Uh-huh.

Q. énd I don’t know if you remember how much later it was‘or
nof? o

A. Yeah, it was a couple days.

Q. And Qhat--

A. J-had=to—wait—for her—to—-call—me;—igause—I--had==—=——The>
:hen:mem:wouid:have:hen:caligmel> ' \

Q. So--

A. And my mom and her mom talked also. And my mom also knows
about, you knbw, everything. !

Q. ékay.‘

A. Like her mom-was telling my mom-like all-the-details—and
stuff-like—that+ |

Q. Did-- <So—-then whén-you called her back -a couple -of days

kater;—or—she=-"""Did you call her-or-did she call yoa?

A. (§neﬂeal}ed~mez —Icould-only-calland talk-to-her mother,
Ca[md~Shaunar*had~to—ca-l4l—“m'ea?
Q. And when--

A. '’Cause she was already gone somewhere else. Thank God.

Kimberly Kerpin - Direct, ER 104 hearing (by Mr. Wetle)1228.
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A.

So in that converéa;ion-- What was the nature of the

second conversation?

§he:sta@ted;ﬁOmsayzai:Her:mether:aetua%%y=ea%&ed:and:toidb

ny-mom-first-that-they weren’t going to say anything about
the_gun in-Portland-because=- | |

" MR. SIMEONE: Your Honor, I know that-- Excuse me. I
know that the Rules'of.Evidehée’dOﬁ't”aPPleHQ;g, but i
think that when-you start »t_a_,_lk_i_ng_. about double hearsay;
thét the court still has it within its diécfetion‘to deny
that kind of testimony. And I think it’s a place where it
should be--

THE COURT: You know, I would rather, Mr. Wetle, that
you cut to the chase of what we’re going to actually, be
able to hear and present to tﬁe jury. x

MR. WETLE: Okay.

THE COURT: So if Ms. Kerpin could be asked to testify,
about what'She'and'ﬁs;~Daniels talked about, that’s what
i!mrinterested»inrs

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.

So after the parents were finished talking, did you have
a chance to talk to Shauna?

ﬁes. Uh-huh.

And:what-was the nature, then, of Yburfconversation‘wiyh

|
Shauna that second time?
!

CShe'told me that she wasn’t going to say anything about

Kimberly Kerpin - Direct, ER 104 hearing (by Mr. Wetle)1229.
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€hat, and she’s like, well, I'm Just-going to-pretend=it-

|

didan"t-happen-bécause I'm really scared and T don’t want
tb-deal with~its aAnd-she= |

Q. ﬂid she say why she couldn’t-- why she couldn’t say that?

A. <She-Said she was really scared: —And-then I-told. her, -I-,

(ggé,like;;well,;look;;yéuikHOQT»maYBe;if¢ygg;kggy;yh9:J

1

%o ‘your head, maybe that would help éatch whoever these- >
people-areé¥ ~ Like:you really need to like ‘say-something, -
like we really need you, and like we were having, yow

‘%know, a little conversation about this and she was like

.no.  She’s like I’m not going to say it. She’s like it”
e
QTdn't happen. And then she changed her story, said -it

(éidn’t happen.:
Q. gﬁas that the last time that you talked to her?
A. (Huh-uh. We talked a couple more times, just about like,

iy!ou know, different things that were going on, and I just
2
kept asking her if she thought they could really be in

trouble, in any kind of danger, like a lot, and she just -
i
(Eept saying yeah, they could be, but I don’t know;.

MR. WETLE: I have no further questions, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Simeone?

i

Kimberly Kerpin#- Direct, ER 104 hearing (by Mr. Wetle)l230.
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KIMBERLY KERPIN

BY

Q.

Qo

A.

Q.
A.

Q.

CROSS EXAMINATION

MR. SIMEONE:

So she at one time told you, Ms. Kerpin, that it didn‘’t
ﬁappen'to her, right? ' | |
What’s that?

She at one time told you that what she said happeﬁed
dién'tlhappen?

Yeah.

Now where did-- Where did all of these conversations
qccur?

4t my parents’ house.

And where was she? ' \

I don’t know.

She was on the phone?

She was already hiding. Her mom had '‘said she was gone,
like they put her up‘somewhere.

But it was all-- It was all on the telephone, right?
Yeah.

ﬁho is it that put her up? You said they put her up?
ﬁer mom, I guess. Her friends, or-- I’m not sure. She
Jas hiding because she was scared.

ﬂou don’t--

%he said she was really scared--

You don’t really know--

Kimberly Kerpin - Cross, ER 104 Hearing (Mr. Simeone) 1231.
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A.

Qo

Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.

Q.

Q.

--of what was going on.

Eécuse me. You don’t really know who it was then who put
her up? You never clarified that with her?

0$, no. They wouldn’t tell me. I don’t know. I have no
i@ea. | |

Néw, did you even know for sure that the individual you
were speaking to was Brian Murphy?

Do I know for sure?

quh.

Yeah.

You met him?

H?lsaid he was Brian on the phone.

H% said-- He said he was Brian?

Yeah.

Bht you never met him before that?

No.

He just introduced himself as Brian Murphy?

Yes.

Would it surprise you that Brian Murphy said that Nick
didn’t have any fear of any retribution from any people?
ﬁhat? I’m sorry.

Would it surprise you to know that Nick said he didn’t
have any fear of retribution--

No.

|

--from anybody?

*

Kimberly Kerpiﬁ - Cross, ER 104 Hearing (Mr. Simeone) 1232.
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He actually had toid Brian that he wasvreally scared, and
that he was afraid that he could never go to anotﬂer
barter fgir. Brian told me that the day before he went to
this barter fair thatlhe was afréid there were péople
after him, and that he was cr&ing to him, saying he could
néver go to anﬁther barter fair. And Brian said well,
doq’t go to the barter fair, and he was like okay. Léft
Brian a note and said I have a friend coming up from San
Fréncisco; we’re going to a concert. Bfian said he was
not there when they took off for the barter fair, or he
would not have let him go. He said he left him a note
t?at they were going to a concert. I have no idea why.
SL the fact that he went probably meant he wasn’t in any
fear? _ '
I guess.
wa, the report about the marijuana' charge, that was
félse, right? She répbrted to you that they were arrested-
for marijuana? |
MR. WETLE: Who’s she, your Honor?
Who'’s she?
I’m sorry. Brian reported--
No.

THE COURT: I’m sorry, what’s your question now?

Yeah.

I want to clarify. Was it Loki, was it Shauna, who said

Kimberly Kerpin - Cross, ER 104 Hearing (Mr. Simeone) 1233.
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Q.
A.

Q.

that she was arrested for a marijuana charge, or that Nick
wés arrested for a marijuana charge?

No. Nick told us that.

And so that was false?

Right.

You never heard that from Shauna as well?

No. Shauna told me the story, like when I finally talked
té her she-- you know, they were missing at that point,
so she proceeded to tell me what was really going on
beéause I was really upset and trying to figure it out.
Now, you said Josh was calling you three times a day?
Oh, yeah, at least.

Wpen was that?

Let’s see, I left hiin on Tuesday, he called me that night,
he called me Wednesday morning. He called me a bunch of
times, ‘cause my mom was like wow, you know, he really
calls you a lot. And that was the first time we héd been
apart in two years. We had our baby and--

And now--

And he didn’t-- You know.

The arrest you had was for a methamphetamine lab, is that
rgght?

Right.

Was the baby in the same house where the methamphetamine

lab was?

Kimberly Kerpinﬁ- Cross, ER 104 Hearing (Mr. Simeone) 1234.
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He was. Uh-huh.

’ . MR. SIMEONE: Do you have the phone records for Nick
Kaiser? I'm sorry. Yeah, the phone records for Nick
Kaiser’s cell phone?

MR. WETLE: We have some of‘those records, maybe. I
4on't know how far back they go.

| MR. SIMEONE: Well, we’re just talking about the
weekend there. Did you have those?

MR. WETLE: Well, the last day--
vTHE COURT: Mr. Simeone, hold on.

MR. WETLE: Sorry, your Honor.

THE COURT: I need you to just go ahead and question
this witness now on this hearing. If you’re talking about
ﬂocating an exhibit, you need té locate those yourself.
ﬁas it your testimony that he was calling on Nick’s cell
phone?

Uh-huh.
MR. SIMEONE: Your Honor, can I approach the witness?
THE COURT: All right.
I’11l show you some records on Nick Kaiser’s cell phone.
Could you identify there where the multiple calls were

made, starting out-- I think you said the 8th?

That’s your parents’ house right there?
|
qh—huh.

Kimberly Kerpin'- Cross, ER 104 Hearing (Mr. Simeone) 1235.

Judy Americk
762 S. Pine
Colville, WA 99114
(509) 684-2267




O 00 NN N w»m A~ WD

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Q.
A.
Q.
A,
Q.
A.

Q.

'

THE COURT: Ms. Kerpin, I’1ll need you to speak up, if
y?u would, please.
I;m sorry. What was the question again?
Well, how many-- Could'you show where the multiple calls
made-- that are made to you from Nick Kaisef's phone for
this very limited record of phone calls that we have?
Y%gh, they were made to Missouri to my parents’ house;
oiay, but how many of them can you identify there?
Oné, two-? |
For the 9th you see how many?
The 9th?
__ begins the 9th.
I| see one for the 9th. ' .
ng about the 10th?
Oﬁe. One.
Are those two.of the days when he was calling you three
times a day?
Yeah. Oh, yeah.
Are you surprised that it’s not registered on the phone?
You know, he could have called me from anywhere. I mean
they called me on the way to the barter fair, he actually
called me on Friday from the barter fair and it cut off.
The phone cut off and he called me back. I don’t know if

;t. was from the cell phone. He called me Saturday

morning, and that call, that was at 8:00 o’clock in the
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Q.

A.

A.

Q.

morning, he called me and the phone cut off.

okay.

Wﬁich it had done the same thing the day before, so‘I just
figured he was going to call me back, and he never called
me back. | |

Well, if there’s no phone at the barter fair, would you
agree that it’s probably coming from the cell phone?
Well, they didn’t get to the barter fair until Friday.
When he was calling me before he even came up to Washing-
tbn, he called me a bunch of times. I don’t know if every
time was from Nick’s cell phone. He wasn’t with Nick
until Friday morning, so--

Wéll, is there any reason why on those-- on these
occasions he-- that you know of thét he wouldn’t be using
a cell phone that he has available to him, where he’s been
m?king these other calls?

W;ll, probably ’‘cause up here it doesn’t really wofk that
good. That’s probably why it cut off two times.

But you just said he wasn’t at the barter fair until
%riday.

f'm sorry, you’re confusing me.

He wasn’t at the barter fair until Friday, isn’‘t that
gight?

Right.

That would have been the 9th?
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Q.
A.

Q.

A.

Q.

Right. So other than that he wasn’t ﬁith Nick and they
wéuldn’t have had a cell phone to call me from. |
Wait. When did he leave to go to the barter fair? I
thought you said hé left on--

Hé left Thursday morning. |

sé he would be with Nick then, wouldn’t he?

No. He had to drivé down-- He came from San Franciéco
aﬁd drove up, and he didn’t call me actually until he got
uplhere. 'He called me one time from a pay phone and said
the car was having trouble, and then he called me on the--
when they met in Seattle, and then they were headed to the
b;rter fair.

WPat was the day he called you from the barter fair and
you got cut off? |

S?turday morning, at 8:00 o’clock in the morning. It was
like 8:20, I thought, but that says 8:48. '
qid you say Friday as well?

fes.

oOkay, so you didn‘t see that on the-- on this list of
éhone calls, did you?

Jos.

fou saw one.

Right. And then it cut off on me and he called me back

From somewhere. I have no idea where he called me back

from. I don’t know.
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Q. B&t didn’t you say he called you back from the bartef
fair?

A. Yeah.

Q. sé that would mean that he’s calling you from that phone,
wéuldn't it? |

A. That’s what I thought, but--

Q. Because there are no--

A. =--it doesn’t show a record of it, so I guess not.

Q. Wéll, assume there’s no--

A. Hé must have figured out another way to call me. That’s
why I figured he was going to call me Saturday, and he
ngver did. I don’t know.

Q. 1Is it possible that’s the only-- that’s the only call he
ﬁade to you that day?

A. Sure.

MR. SIMEONE: I have no further questions.
THE COURT: All right, Mr. Wetle, anything fu?ther?
é MR. WETLE: No, your Honor.
WITNESS STEPS DOWN
fHE COURT: And then, Mr. Wetle, I’ll hear from you, then,
on argument, if any.
ﬁR. SIMEONE: Your Honor, I was-- 1 was expecting to call

Deputy Caruso.

THE COURT: Well, no, I was indicating I didn’t need to

|
hear from Deputy Caruso. You know, these ER 104 hearings are
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whatever the court féels is necessary.‘ As I indicated
yesteﬁday afternoon, my concern was hearing from Ms. Kerpinlas
to whether or not I-- what exactly shg had to say and whether
or not her story basically hung together. 1It’s immaterial to
me, Mr. Simeone, what-- 1It'’s nof immaterial. ‘I think it’s
agreed‘ and stipulated what Detective Caruso or Sergeant
CarusQﬂs going to say about it, namely, that she denied that
it ever happened. .

MR; SIMEONE: Well, your Honor, what I'ﬁ ﬁhinking-— I
don't%mean to interrupt you, but what I‘m thinking is that he
could give the court some indication as to the believability,
the tone of her §oice, those kinds of things that bear on
credibility. | ‘ )

THE COURT: All right. Well, and I thank you for that
offer,, but I’m not going to find it necessary at this point.
I would like to hear the argument, though, on the basis ' of
what we have heard. Mr; Wetle? |

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor. The State would submit
that the overall circumstances show the motivation for her to
be tracking down Josh Schaefer, her calls to the residence
where he was living, the information from Brian, the follow-up
to gét ahold of the girlfriend, the girlfriend’s relaying her

information about what really was happening, and sharing with

her, 'I think the circumstances are realistic, and I think that

at that time she did hear that she had been threatened with a
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gun by some guys. And'Ilthink the fact that she called back
1ater;and got é change of story because she was really scafed
is realistic as well. And‘I think that’s about the time that
Sergeant Caruso would get the retraction story, and feel that
the Séate has proved by a prepondefance'that the étatemeﬁt was
made,?and that shé be allowed to testify-- she should be
allowed to testify that as to the furtherance of the conspir-
acy. . |

THE COURT: All right, thank you. No, Mr.lsimeone?

MR. SIMEONE: Thank you, your Honor. As I indicated
yesterday, and as I continue to indicate now, I don’t believe
that fhere’s enough here to say that.that's a preponderance.
What ?e have, probably, is about a wash here for the evidence.
We’veigot-— I know the Rules of Evidence don’t apply, and the
court.certainly is and certainly did listen to-- is entitled
to ana certainly did listen to a‘great deal of hearsay. But
even at that, you stilllgo back to the basic reason why we:
have the hearsay rule, and that is to make sure that we have
relia%ility in testimony. Just because the hearsay rule goes
away éoesn’t mean that we no longer pay heed to the very real
purpo%e for it. What we’ve got is hearsay from a person who'’s
talkihg to this--I call her Loki--Shauna on the phone, so
she’s| not seeing facial expression, she doesn’t see body

1anguﬁge, she’s getting, I think, kind of a sketchy account.

And at one time she says well, she’s not threatened, and she
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admits that she told her that. And she says well, I‘m just
going to say that. So we really don’t know. And I think that
that being the case, you’re in a situation where this is about
a wash, and I don’t think that’s a preponderance, based upon
the very real statement that we got from Deputy Caruso on that
interLiew. And I'm looking for that now--somehow it seems
that I’ve misplaced it--because I’d like to read that into the
record. I beg the court’s pardon, your Honor. Again, your
Honorl, I apologize, but it’s important that I locate this.
THE COURT: That’s all right. Go ahead.
MR. SIMEONE: Sorry, your Honor. That’s a report of
i
September 28th of 2000, so that’s after those phone calls. He
says:
I was contacted--
This is Deputy Caruso, Sergeant Caruso now.
! I was contacted by Shauna Daniels. She’s
the ex-girlfriend of Nick Kaiser. She was.
( calling me back because Deputy Harbolt had
f contacted her mother and asked her to call
us. Shauna said she last saw Nick when they
were arrested together on Whidbey Island.
So that matches up.
| She said didn’t know that he was involved in
the drug culture, and it came as a surprise
to her when they were arrested. This oc-
curred April some time. She couldn’t remem-
ber exactly when. The last time she spoke
to him was on the phone, some time during
the first of May. Nick had called her and

told her he tried to commit suicide by
taking an overdose of pills. Shauna called
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, the police ltol report this, and had not
f spoken to Kaiser since.

Next paragraph:
I '‘asked Shauna if she had ever been threat-
ened by anyone to cause her harm due to her .
relationship with Nick. I also asked her if
she had ever heard anyone threaten Nick in

_ her presence. She said she was never threat-

} ened and never heard anyone else threaten

! Nick while she was there. Shauna said she
accompanied Nick to a barter fair in the
fall of ‘98 or ’99. She said they drove
with friends, and that she does not even
know where the barter fair was. She did
remember there was a big river, and she
remembered seeing the Northern Lights in the
sky. She said they camped in a tent by the

! stage and she sold items she’d sewn. She

thought they were maybe in the Northport

area, but couldn’t remember for sure.

Last paragraph:
|

I asked Shauna where she was living at. She
said she really didn’t want to tell me as:
she’s scared about what happened to Nick.
She gave her parents’ phone number of 360-
693-9971, and she said they could get a

| message-- her a message and she would call

: me back. Shauna told me her birth date, our
conversation ended at--

It looks like that would be 3:35.

Your Honor, he doesn’t indicate anywhere in there that

she’s| misrepresented. And to me, unless-- if a trained

'

invegtigator says something to that effect, if he thinks
someéhing’s up, especially since he was making that phone
callj heels up information that he’d got from Ms. Kerpin, he
would have noted that, and he doesn’t. So I think that weighs

against it, and I think in a close situation here a better
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1

course.of conduct for the court is this. I made a commenﬁ
yesterday, it was made in good faith. What I said was that
she’s still alive, and he said so far as he knows. I don’t

!

know ﬂhat it opens the door. The court has said it does. I
thinkga better way to handle it is to have me not bring that
up any further in the trial, whether it be in testimony or in
closiqg argument, because I don’t know that that detail is
that important to the jury at this time, and I think the
prejuqicial value of what.we do here, if we start talking
aboutJ the threats to her now, overwhelms and supersedes
I

whatever impact that statement that I made, or the qugstions

and a?swers that were spoken yesterday would have.

TﬁE COURT: All right. Mr. Wetle, I don’t think I need to
hear &rom you, unless YOU want to put.something more on the
record.

M%. WETLE: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. This is a really importan£ issue
because, again, the whole reason that the State wants this in
is because of the suggestion made by the evidence from Mr. Tom
schaefer in response, obviously, to a question by Mr. Simeone
that |[Ms. Daniels was not afraid, was not dead, and so why
wouldn’t she be dead if she was with Nick Kaiser and as big a

threat to the furtherance of this alleged drug trafficking

conspiracy.

Wwell, the State wants to respond to that suggestion with
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this evidence, and admittedly this gets a little bit off the

subject, somewhat, but-- and it does bring up a whole area of
perhaps 404 (a) evidence, character evidence, about what kind
of peeple Mr. Grange has associated himself with, et cetera,

who w?uld allegedly threaten peeple nith guns fo keep them
quiet# If they'll threaten people with guns to keep them
quiet;‘then won’t they‘also kill them to keep them quiet.
That nind of action and conformity therewith is'generally not
admiséible, but as I’ve previously ruled, this Xkind of

evidence is clearly relevant to the proof of motive. The

existence of the alleged drug trafficking conspiracy has

already been-- I’ve already ruled that the alleged drug

trafficking conspiracy can be intreduced into evidence because

I have already found that it has been established pre-triél by
|

a preponderance of the evidence, under Evidence Rule 104, in
prevfous hearings. '
ﬁhether'Ms:-— There’s another issue. Whether Ms. Daniels
is a co-conspirator of a party, of Mr. Grange. And again, I
think that by a preponderande, it is established that she is,
and #y the testimony of Ms. Kerpin that she-- that Ms.
Daniels, rather, and Nick Kaiser were involved in drug
trafﬁicking, caught in the process, in fact, of cutting the
1LSD. | This is corroborated by Detective Dogeagle, who actually

was an eyewitness to the two of them being caught in the

prog#ess in the house, in the process of preparing the LSD for
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redisgribution. So I think that there’s a preponderance of
the evidence indicating that she is a co-conspirator of Mr.
Grang% in regard to this drug trafficking. |
puring the course of and in furtherance of the conspiracy,
is th%re an indication that this statement by Ms. Daniels to
Ms. Kgrpin was during the course of and in furtherance of the
conspgracy? and I think I have to find by a preponderance of
the ev1dence that it is established that it was in furtherance
of the conspiracy. ﬁ&y°”’Bé@ause obv1ous;y_4he_conspiracy,§
LalmﬁﬂEHto/traffig _in drugs, A side task, a necessary task
ass001ated with that dangerous business, is to obfuscate its
jllicit activities and to stem the flow of information to law
enfoJcement.

We’ve had téstimoﬁy of the ways in which such drug
traféicking organizations silence members who, as part of the
ordlnary course, do get arrested, and this fits—— Ms.
Kerpin’s testimony fits in with that expert testlmony that
we’v? had.

éo the final question then is did this happen? Did this
statement from Ms. Daniels to Ms. Kerpin actually occur? And
I think that by a preponderance of the evidence I would find
that|it did. That doesn’t mean that the jury will find that

it did, but-- And obviously Mr. Simeone is going to have to

call| Sergeant Caruso for his testimony about what Ms. Kerpin

told him. But I think because of that being left hanging in
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the air, that issue of well, gee, why wouldn’t Ms. Daniels be
afraid, why wouldn’t she be-- why wouldn’t she be someone who
was kﬂlled. Well, because she was-- The response is tﬁen she
was dealt with in a different way and it was effective and
that'é all that was necessary, would‘be the response to that.
Sé I do find that it is relevant, that it has been estab-
1isheq by a preponderancé of the evidence, and that it is
admiséible under Evidence Rule 801 (d)(2)(v) as a statement by

a co-?qnspirator of a party during the course and in further-

ance bf the conspiracy. Giﬁﬁijjﬁotﬁtherconsgi:acy“EQ;§§Eﬁii

@EE£@§£IE§§§:§ﬁ§EﬂEﬁﬁ:ifﬁffIEKiﬁaiébnébiraeyj

S? that’s my ruling on that issue, and miraculously we
have five minutes before the jury is going to be here. I
can'tibelieve we actually have timed something right.

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Wetle, anything else preliminarily before
we take a quick five minute recess ourselves here?

MR. WETLE: No, your Honor.

%HE COURT: Mr. Simeone, anything else?

ﬁn. SIMEONE: No, your Honor.

COURT RECESSED
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BONNIE MARIE McDONALD

BY

Q.

COURT RECONVENED WITH THE JURY SEATED
THE COURT: Mr. Wetle, you may call your next witneés.
MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor. The State would
call Bonnie McDonald.
WITNESS IS SWORN
- THE COURT: If you would give us your full name,
please?
KMS.,McDONALD: Bonnie Marie McDonald.

'THE COURT: And your spelling on your last name,

please?

MS. McDONALD: M-c-D-0O-N-A-L-D.

THE COURT: All right, and your current address,
please? . '

MS. McDONALD: 3823 23rd West, Seattle, Washington.
THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Wetle?
MR. WETLE: Thank you.

Being first duly sworn, on
oath testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. WETLE:
Good morniné, Ms. McDonald. First, I would ask you to
state to the jury and the court your occupation.
I work for Qwest Communications in the security depart-
ﬁent.
And what are your duties?'

Bonnie Marie McDonald - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1248.
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I am custodian of the records.

I would ask the bailiff to hand you what’s been marked as
Exhibit 110, and I would ask if you can identifylwhat's
been marked as Exhibit 110.

Do you-- All right. This is a phone record for a
customer for area-- for the phone number 509-732-4590, a
Ken R. Cameron. These are toll records.

Okay, thank you. Are you the custodian of those records?
Yes.

And is this record made in the regular course of business?
Yes.

Is this a business record you’re familiar with?

Yes.

Is this record a true and accurate copy of the billing
statement for phone number 509-732-4590 with a subscriber
named Ken Cameron?

Yes.

And is this record made at or near the time of the
transaction?

Yes. |

Is this record a part of the permanent records of the
company?

Yes.

and have you-- Have there been any alterations or changes

made on it since the time it was made?

Bonnie Marie McDonald - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1249.
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A. I would say no.

Q; Have there been any highlights on the copy that you héve
there?

A. You mean made by ybursélf?

Q. Yes.

A. Yeé.

Q. And those are just é marker highlight?

A. Yes. ' |

Q. other thaﬁ that, have there been any changes with respect
to the record?

A. I don’t see any.

MR. WETLE: Your Honor, we;d offer State’s Exhibit 110.
THE COURT: All right. | ! .
MR. SIMEONE: No objection.

THE COURT: One-ten is admitted.

Q. I’d ask, Ms. McDonald, if you could step to the jury box.
Come down and get in front of the Jjury and bring your’
exhibit with you.

A. This?

Q. Yes. And I would ask you to step over to the microphone,
and I would direct your attention to the highlighted call,
and would ask if you can talk to the jury about all the
various columns in that highlighted area and what they
mean.

A. All right. This is a call that was made on June 10th at

Bonnie Mafie McDonald - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1250.
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Qo

A.

.‘Q'

7:50 P.M. The call was from this'number to Portland
number 503-351-3219. The rate is the night rate.

So N stands for night rate? |
Night.

Because the jury will haQe this and be able to look at
that.

Night. Okay, the next item is five minutes, duration of
the call.

And that just has the number five?

Yes.

And then there’s-- What’s next?

The next is a serial number that we use to identify what
long distance carrier was used.

And that’s just a nﬁmber of--

A number of digits.

Number of digits?

Yeah.

And then the last--

Is the price of the call.

so from that record you can say that a call was placed
from what number?

It was made from 509-732-4590.

And is that the Ken Cameron residence?

Yes.

And the call went to?

e
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It went to a Portland number, which ié 503-351-3219.

MR. WETLE: Thank you very much, Ms. McDonald. If you
want to hand that tp'Juror Number_6 here, and retake the
stand, please. | | |

Ms. McDonald, thank you vefy muéh. I haQe no further
qﬁestions'of this witness, your Honor.

THE COURT: All fight, Mr. Simeone, any questions?l

MR. SIMEONE: No questions, your Honor.

| | WITNESS IS EXCUSED |

THE COURT: You may call your next witness, Mr. Wetle.

MR. WETLE: I would call Tim Navratil.

THE COURT: Tim Navratil?

MR. WETLE: Yes, your Honor. ‘ |

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. WETLE: May I approach the bench with counsel, your
Honor? !

THE COURT: Yes.

UNRECORDED SIDEBAR

THE COURT: Ms. McDonald, if you wouldn’t mind stepping
pack up to the witness stand for just a couple more
questions. You’re still under oath, so we’ll just let Mr.

Simeone ask a couple questions.
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BONNIE MARIE McDONALD

BY

A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.

Q.

A.
Q.
A.
Q.

A.

CROSS EXAMINATION
MR. SIMEONE: o

Ms. McDonald, are ﬁhose;— I don’t know how you call themn.
Do you refer tq them as retrievalé? |
No.
Is that what you--
The record?
Yeéh, thaf record.
You could.
Is that a pretty thorough readout of what the activity on
that line was?
Yes. o ' |
It should contain all the calls that were made then from
it?
Long distance calls.
Long diétaﬁce calls? And collect calls as well?
To that number?
Yes.
Yes, they would show.

MR. SIMEONE: Ookay, I have no further questions.
Thank you.

WITNESS IS EXCUSED
THE COURT: Now Mr. Navratil?

MR. WETLE: That’s right, your Honor. The State would

Bonnie Marie McDonald - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1253.
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call Tim Navratil.
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TIMOTHY KIRK NAVRATIL

BY

Q.
A.

Q.

WITNESS IS SWORN
THE COURT: Would you start, first of all, by pulling
up to that microphone, and giving‘us your name, please,
and spelling your last name?
MR. NAVRATIL: Timothy Kirk Navfatil, N-A;V-R-A-T—I—L.
| THE COﬁRT: Thank you, and your current address? Your

business address will do.

MR.' NAVRATIL: 1I‘11 pull it out real quiqk here.
thét pusiness address is here. 3350 161st Avenue South-
east, Bellevue, Washington 98008.

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Wetle?

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.

~Being first duly sworn, on
oath testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. WETLE: ,
Good morning, Mr. Navratil. Could you please state your
occupation for the court and jury?
custodian of records for Verizon Wireless.

And what are your duties?

Fighting fraud and going to court for anything that gets
Subpoenaed.

And you’ve been subpoenaed here?

Yes, I have. .

And I’4d ask the bailiff to hand you what’s been marked as

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1255,
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A.

Q.

A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.

Q.

A.

Exhibit 109, and ask if you can identify that.
This is a bill for a Robert Schultz for a phone number of
503-351-3219. '
And what billing period is that for?
This looks like a billing.period for July.
Would that include June phone calls?
Yes, June phone calls. Correct.

THE COURT: You need to clarify what year that would
be.
Two thousand.

THE COURT: Thank you.
and you may have said it, but who’s the subscriber for
that number? |
Robert E. Schultz.
aAnd you’ve also said you are the custodian of the records
for Verizon?
Correct.
And is this record made in the regular course of business?
Yes.
And is this a business record that you are familiar with?
Yes.
Is this record a true and accurate copy of the billing
statement for Number 503-351-3219 with a subscriber named
Robert E. Schultz?

Yes.

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1256.
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A.

Q.

Aand is this record.:made at or near‘ the time of the
transaction?
Yes. , o
and is. this record part of the permanent record of the
company? | |
ves.
Aand have there been'ény alterations or changes made on’it
since the time it was made?
Other.thah some highlighting on here, no;
And is there also a copy stamp on it?
Yes, there is.
MR. WETLE: Your Honor, we’d offer State’s Exhibit 109.
MR. SIMEONE: No objection. ' |
THE COURT: All right, Exhibit 109 is admitted.
Mr. Navratil, 1’d ask if you could take that particular
exhibit and step to Fhe microphone ovér here by the-- " in
front of the jury, and I would direct your attention to
Page 13 of that particular billing statement, and I would
refer you to a call made-- or received around 7:51. And
then I would ask you to go through with the Jjury the
various columns and what they mean in that particular
record. |
Okay, what you have here is you’ve got the incoming phone
call made at 7:51 P.M. on 6/10 of 2000. What you have is

you’ve got the subscriber, . You’ve got your date,

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1257.
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your time and the city the call was made in, or where the
phone was at that time. So the call was an incoming phone
call. In Olympia is where the phone was located, or the
nearest area where the phone was located at that time.

The strongest signal it picked'up. It was an incoming
phone call. An incoming phone call will show the sub-
scriber’s number again. The call lasted five minutes.
There’s your minute column right there. If there was a
charge for the phone'call it would be right there, if it
waé outside of their normal price plan. - A service
charge, and then a toll charge. Below it, since this is
a subscriber who was outside of his home area, he’s
charged a toll for an incoming phone call, so it will have
here-- it will have a toll charée line, and it’1l1l have a
number right here that that is system-assigned to him.
Give you an example. I’m from Seattle, Washington. While
I’m here visiting your town of Colville, if someone were
to call my cell phone, they’re calling Seattle, Washing-
ton. The call gets automatically forwarded to me out
here. I’m going to pay toll for that charge from Seattle
to Colville. and the Colville system will assign me a
temporary phone number so I will receive that phone call,
hidden to me as a subscriber, but it’s there for billing
purposes. That’s what you’re seeing here. This phone

number, 503-351-3219 number, was visiting in the Taco-

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1258.
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ma/Olympia area, and that was what you see right there.
And then I would direct your attention to page 12-B.
Well, practically speaking, just to sum up on the éall to
Mr. Schultz, that was a call that he received for five
minutes? |

Correct.

At that time?

That is correct.

And then I‘d direct your attention to Page 12-B and ask
what happened at 10:57 A.M. on that particular day..
There was a phone call placed to the Northport, Washing-
ton, area, to a number of 509-732-4590, and it was placed
for one minute with a toll charge of ten cents.

So that would be coming from--

That was--

Who'’s making the call?

That would be coming from the 503-351-3219 belonéing to
Robert Schultz.

And then it would be going to the Northport number of 732-
45907

Correct.

And what’s the listing for that number?

I believe that was a listing for a Cameron. Okay.

Aﬁd what does that call show in terms of time?

One minute or less.

‘;./:
Timothy Kirk Navratil - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1259.
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MR. WETLE: Thank you, Mr. Navratil. Your Honor--
And you may hand that to the first juror here. 1 have'no
further questions.  .You may re—take the stand, please.

THE COURT: And, Mr. Simeone, are you going to have any
questions of this witness? | |

MR. SIMEONE: Yes.

'THE COURT: Okay.

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1260.
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TIMOTHY KIRK NAVRATIL

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. SIMEONE:

Q.

Now, the five minute phone call, that’s to the same number
as the other one, is it-- isn’t it correct, sir?
To the 503, to the .subscriber?
Right.
Yes. It was an incoming phoné call.
Do you have the-- Do you have the remainder of the
records for June there?
On that bill?
Yeah.
Yes.
Did you see any other phone calls to that number-- or
from that number? From the Schultz number to the 4590
number?
To the Cameron number? Is that what you’re referfing to,
sir?
Right.
I’m not sure how far you want me to go back, but I have
another one so far.
Is there any way-- You haven’t done it. 1Is there any way
to establish the source of the--

THE COURT: I’m sorry. You have or haven’t?

MR. NAVRATIL: I have. I found one more so far.

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1261.
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Q.

A.

Okay, where is that?‘

That would be on 5/15 of 2000 at 8:46 P.M.

Five-fifteen?

Uh-huh.

And what time was it, 8:407

Eight-forty-six P.M.

So.that’s May, righé?

Correct.

And what are the details of that call?

once again, it’s a call being pléced to 509-732-4590. The
call lasted for one minute.

Is there any way to know with regards to the incoming call
which you testified about, sir, on June 10th, where it’s
from?

No. Those call records are-- Those kind of records are
not kept. th on the Verizon Wireless side they’re not
kept. |

Is there any-- Didn’t you say that that was from Ken
Cameron?

I’ve got two different tabs here that we’re talking about.
We’ve got an incoming phone call that I testified about.
Yeah, that’s the June 10th call, right? That’s an
incoming call?

The incoming phone call. ‘Then we’re also talking about a

call being placed out to a 732-4590.

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1262.
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A.

A.
Q.

A.

And you can’t identify where the collect call came from
then?

The incoming phone call on the 10th? No, I cannot.

- Yeah, that’s another way to say collect, right?

Correct.
Do you have July’s there as well?
I’m not certain. Do we-- Not in this bill, no.

THE COURT': While Mr. Simeone*s=leeking-at_his-notess
mﬁﬁld:yéﬁ:%ustthiqh¥fghﬁithe:sécond:numbea:@hat:yggtggg
a@f&g§:fﬁ5§éfL§3;%ﬁ§f:ﬁf:ﬁﬁybady:wants:te:find:éﬁ;#ﬂﬁﬁP
Momn*t—have-to-search..quite_as hard-as—you=did~
What’s the latest date in June we have then, sir?
The 10th.

THE COURT: Could you clarify whether your question
meant the latest day on the bill period--
I’'m talking about 351-3219 now. Don’t you have records
there through the 12th? .
I’ve got calls up till the 10th of June on this.
In the records there that you have, now, what do you see
for calls placed to California, or any other out-of-state
calls? How many?
You want me to go through and count them?
Well, that would be what I’d prefer, yes.
There’s approximately 36 calls that are placed outside of

the State of Oregon. And when I say outside the state,

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1263.
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those are calls-- Hg's placing calls to numbers that are
located outside of the State of Oregon.
You know, I'm goiﬁgvthrough this and I didn’t see them,
sir. | | B

MR. SIMEONE: Could I apprbach the witnesé,‘your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

see so that we’re on the same page.

This is your state right here. You’re asking me for calls

that are being placed .

MR. WETLE: I don’t think it can be-- 1I’m sorry, your
Honor. I’‘m sure that the recorder cannot pick up the
conversation.

THE COURT: VYes, that’s true. ' \

If I understood correctly, yéu're asking for calls that
were placed to numbers that are located outside of Oregon.

Right.

So here would be oné right here. You go by the State of:

Washington, so it would be on 5/12 on page 4-B. So on 4-B
you’ve got a call being placed to Northport, which would
be to our 509-732-4590. You go down a few more lines and
you’ve got a call being placed to Upland, California, and
then we’ve got another call to Northport, Washington down
here. So there’s three so far on this page. Come down
here and there’s two more to Washington. There’s five,

six. One to Nevada. Seven, to Northport. Two more to

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1264.
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the Northport number. Here’s a call to Houston, Texas.
Actually that was a call-- That was actually an incoming
phone call in Houston, Texas, but that was an aufomatic

call that I explained earlier about the toll charges

while you receive an incoming phone call. Here’s two
calls in Washington.

THE COURT: Can the jury hear the witness?

_THE JURY: (No audible response)

THE COURT: Okay.
wa more calls placed to Washington. Another two more
placed to Washington. Another one placed to Washington.
Washington again on 5/26. Five-twenty-seven again to
Washington. Again. Washington. A call to New Orleans,
Louisiana on 5/31.
How do you-- How is it that you see that that’s to New
Orleans?
LA stands for Louisiana.
Oh, okay.
And New Orleans would be the city. It shows your destina-
tion right there. There’s the phone number that was
dialed, and that was a number that bélongs in New Orleans,
Louisiana.
I see.
We’ve got Orange, California on 5/31. Vancouver, Washing-

ton. Vancouver, Washington. Vancouver, Washington five

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1265.
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Q.

A.

Q.

more times on that page. Upland, California. Two more to
Orange, California on 6/7. Here’s our call to Northport
again right here.

That’s the 4590 number you’re talking about in Northport?
Uh-huh.

When you say the Northport number, that’s what you’re
referring to?

Yeah. one call being placed to Northport would be
the 509-732-4590. |

Okéy.

And there you go.

Okay, so I tally that four to California and one to Texas,
one to New Orleans, and the rest of the long distance
calls are to Washington?

Uh-huh. Correct.

Those calls to Orange County were the 6th and the 7th,
were they not? .

They were on the 7th. I’ve got two calls on the 7th to
Orange, California. Correct.

Sixth and 7th?

On the 6th. I have no calls to California on the 6th.
Just the 7th then?

Correct.

My record’s a little bit different than yours, but I want

to make sure that I understand that there is one showing

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1266.
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for-- to the Northport number on 6/9.' That would be page
12-B, and that’s a minute. |
A. Correct, 6/9 at 10;57‘A.M. to Northport.
Q. There's’no time change there that we’re talking about? 1Is
that correct? So Portland time’s'thé same és our time?
A. Correct.
MR. SIMEONE: Okay, I have no further questions. Thank
you. |
'THE COURT: All right Mr. Wetle, any redirect?

MR. WETLE: Yes, your Honor.

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1267.
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TIMOTHY KIRK NAVRATIL

BY

Q.

A.
Q.

Q.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
MR. WETLE:

Mr. Navratil, on the Rob Schultz monthly activity detail
records, you can’t-- or can yoﬁ tell who or what number
is calling in to him?
No, you cannot.
And you can’t tell whether those incoming calls are from
out of state or not?
I éannot.
All it lists on the record would be incoming?
Yeah. All it says will be incoming and the subscriber’s
phoné number.
Which would be his humber?
Which would be his number, correct.
So you have no way to know how many of those incoming
calls are from California, Washington, Texas? |
I have no way of knowing.
Okay.
Not on the Verizon Wireless records, no, I do not.
I would ask you to-- Are the exhibits back from the--
Exhibits 100 and 1107

THE COURT: One-ten is here, 109 the witness has.

THE COURT: Could I ask the bailiff to hand the witness

Exhibit--

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Redirect (by Mr. Wetle) 1268.
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A.

THE COURT: One-ten?

MR. WETLE: Yes. Thank you, your Honor.
Now, having 110 ahd 109 in your hand, I’d ask you to
compare the two bills for the June 10th call at 7:50 on
the Qwest record, and your——' | |

MR. SIMEONE: What'’s the reference again, counsel? I’m
sorry.

,MRHIWETLE: That would be Exhibit 110.

And the same time period on the Verizon Exhibit 109. Tell
me, what does that tell you?

What it appears to me as I’m looking at a Qwest bill--
Maybe you could show the jury, because they’re going to
have to make that connection. ' |
May I step down?

Yes, please.

What I see hefe on the Qwest bill is I see a call on June
10th, 7:{50 P.M., Porfland, to our subscriber here, Robert:
Schultz, 503-351-3219. The call lasts one minute. Pardon
me. Five minutes. What we have here, approximately the
same time frame, at 7:51 P.M., same time, is an incoming
phone call lasting for five minutes.

And the notation on the Verizon bill is incoming?
Correct.

So you have-- Unless you. have that--

I have no idea.

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Redirect (by Mr. Wetle) 1269.
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Unless you had that other phone bill, you could never make
the connection as to who made that call?
That would be correct.
Because you do have that phone call, and you see that
there’s one minute difference, is that unusual to you?
That is not unusual between billing systems. Different
carriers may be about one minute off, iso that would be=-
This appears to me, without reasonable doubt, that this is
a-phone call that this number on this bill placed to this
ppéne right here.

MR. WETLE: Thank you very much. I have no further
questions, your Honor.

MR. SIMEONE: Nor do I, your Honor.

WITNESS IS EXCﬁSED
THE COURT: You may call your next witness, Mr. Wetle.

MR. WETLE: 1I’d call Kim Kerpin, your Honor.

Timothy Kirk Navratil - Redirect (by Mr. Wetle) 1270.
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'WI?NESS IS SWORN

THE COURT: If you’ll start by giving us your fﬁll
name, please, for thelrecord?

MS.‘kERPIN: Tt’s Kimberly Kefpin.

THE COURT: And your speiling'on your last namé, Ms.
Kerpin?

MS. KERPIN: K-E-R-P-I-N.

ITHE_COURT: And, Ms. Kerpin, your current address,
please? |

MS. KERPIN: 10730 Thornmint Road.

THE COURT: And the city and state?

MS. KERPIN: San Diego, California 92127.

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Wetle, you may inquire.

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.

KIMBERLY KERPIN Being first duly sworn, on

oath testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. WETLE:

Q.

A.

Q.

Good morning, Ms. Kerpin.

Morning.

Could you please state what you do for work and your
regular occupation?

I’'m a mother, and I also babysit. I’ve done that since
I‘'ve been young. I’m 23 now and I’ve always worked like

day camps and day care since I was like 15.

Kimberly Kerpin - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1271.
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And what was your felationship to Josh Schaefer?

He was my boyfriend. We always said-- We’d call eaéh
other husband and wife. We weren’t technically mqrried,
but we were in love, Iand we were planning on getting
married. | | |

And do you havela child by him?

Yes.

Were you able to examine some of the items recove;ed from
the Kaisef vehicle? |

Yes.

1’d ask the bailiff to hand you what’s been marked as
Exhibit 76.

MR. WETLE: Has that been re-sealed? o .

THE CLERK: (Inaudible) .

MR. WETLE: Okay, if we could--

THE COURT: We had a little discussion and decided that
just for pfeservatian'of the record the Clerk would put-
her initials when she re-seals one of the evidence bags
that’s cut open in open court. There’s a record of it
being cut open in open court; there’s not necessarily a
record of her re-sealing unless she puts her initials.

MR. WETLE: That’s correct, Your Honor. Then do we
need scissors to--

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. WETLE: --re-open the bag? Jack-- Mr. Bailiff,

1272.
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would you open it for the witness?

THE COURT: Ms. Kerpin, are there some Kleenex right
there? Okay. And if you need a glass of water, fhere's
a cup for you there.

MR. WETLE: Could you take the exhibit out of the bag,
Mr. Bailiff?

Ms. Kerpin, I would ask if you can identify that?
Yes.

And what is that?

It’s Josh’s crystal. Our crystal.

And how long have you had that?

Like a year and a half.

1272-A
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What was-- What was his relationship.to that crystal?
We bought it together at one of our favorite shops, befbre

Seclea [spelled phonetically] was born, and it was our

family crystal. It éymbolized like our love for each
other.
Would he--

He would never go anywhere without it. He carried it éll
thé time. When we put it in our car, like it-- it would
sit right between us, and if we ever got ouf of the car he
would put in his pocket. Oh, hy God.
I’'d ask the bailiff to hand you what’s marked as Exhibit
44. Ms. Kerpin, there is a. picture of a bead in that
particular picture. ' |
Uh-huh.
And can you identify that bead?
Yes.
And what is that?
It’s Josh’s bead. Oour friend made it for him, before
Seclea was born, for a present.
I’ ask the bailiff to hand you what’s been marked as
Exhibit 7.

MR. WETLE: Mr. Bailiff, you may need to open that as
well, and show Ms. Kerpin those exhibits.
Ms. Kerpin, you’ve been handed Exhibit 7, and I would ask

if you can identify those.

Kimberly Kerpin - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1273.
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Q.

AI

Q.

Yes.
And what are they? Just tell what they are.
It’s Josh’s nose ring.

MR. SIMEONE: 1Is there __  ?

MR. WETLE: I think there waé a broad silver ring.
And do you recognize that ring at all?
Yeah.
Is that a ring similar to one that he would wear or did
wear?
Uh-huh.
And was that on a finger or--
It was in his dreadlock. Another dreadlock. But it was
pretty fine there. Like I never-- I could only see a
part of it before.

MR. WETLE: Thank you very much. If you want to take
the exhibits, Mr. Bailiff.

THE BAILIFF: . ____ crysta}?

MS: ‘KERPIN: -Can-I-hold:the crystaly

THE COURT: = .Is .there "any problem with the witness
Keeping the one exhibit for her testimony?

MR. WETLE: No, your HoneQr.

THE COURT: Then we’ll have to have you give it back),
of course, Ms. Kerpin, when you’re finished.

MS. KERPIN: Okay. !

~MR—WEELE: But go ahead with your questions, Mr.

e Cooty
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Wetle.

Q. Ms. Kerpin, where did you and Josh live?

A. Mendocino, Califorﬁia,

Q. And di@lyou know Nick Kaiser?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And how long have you known Nick Kaiser?

A. For about two years. We met him in the summer of '99;

Q. Wefe Nick and Josh in the Family?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the relationship between Josh and Nick?

A. They were friends. They had met like a month before I met
Josh at a Rainbow gathering. Josh’s first Rainbow
gathering. And I think they hung out for a little bit,
and then we met and we star£ed hanging out. And then
exactly a year 1ater, he was at a concert that we were at,
and that’s when I met him. And Josh said this is' my
friend, you know, tﬁat I met a year ago.

. What caused Josh to go to Seattle to see Nick Kaiser?

A. Well--

THE COURT: 1I’m sorry, what time frame are you--
. In June of 19-- or June of 2000.

A. He actually went up to be a friend to him. Nick had told
us that he got a marijuana charge from local cop-- 1local
police, and so he was calling us in May and the beginning
of June, and.all we had is voice mail, ‘cause we were
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1living out in the woods and we didn’t have a phone. And
he was telling us-- 1like he was crying on our voice mail
and saying how upset he was ‘cause his girlfriend bfoke up
with him over this marijuana charge. And we were praying

for him and he was--

Q. So he went to Seattle?

A. Yeah. I actually left to go to my parents’ house. We
were both supposed to leave, and Josh stayed, and he was
going to come a week later. And he called me two days
after I’d been at my parent’s house and said, you know,
Nick called, there’s a barter fair, and he really needs me
to come up. So he said, Do you care if I go? And I said
no. We’d never been to a barter fair and we were going to
go together for the first time, but he asked if I cared,
and I said no. And he was just going to be a friend.

Q. So then he left to be with Nick Kaiser?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Do you know what vehicle that Josh drove up to Seattle?

A. Our ’'89 Chevy Blazer.

Q. And who was that registered to?

A. Josh and I.

Q. And what address is that vehicle registered to?

A. It’s actually registered to Nick’s, because we bought it
up here and we couldn’t smog it in California. And we
don’t really know anybody up here, so we asked Nick if we
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Q.
A.

Q.

A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.

could use his address.

So it was registered to the Oak Harbor-- Donald Avenue in
Oak Harbor address?

Yeah.

When did you last hear from Josﬁ?

Like 8:00 o’clock, 8:20, on June 10th, on Saturday.
Saturday morning, the year 20007

Uh-huh.

And do you know where that call was coming from?

Yeah.

Where do you believe it was coming from?

He said they were at the barter fair. He had called me
the night before, on Friday night, and said they were at
the barter fair. And he called me Friday morning and said
they were on their way to the barter fair, and they were
in Spokane and they were getting some supplies and stuff.
Do you know how much money Josh had to go up to Séattle?
Just like a couple hundred dollars.

Some time back in February, specifically on February 9th
of year 2000, were three of you arrested?

Yes.

and was that in Oakland?

Yeah.

and what-- And were you charged with possession of LSD?

No.
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A.
Q.
A.

Q.

A.
Q.

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

Were you arrested for that?

We were arrested, but we weren’t charged.

So you were never charged with the crime?

Huh-uh.

And was Josh?

We were thére, but--~

Wag Josh ever chargéd with the crime?

No.

Did the officers ask to give you any-- ask you to give
statements?

Yes, they did.

And you didn’t know what Josh. had said in his statement?
Huh-uh. No. I knew a little. _ ' .
Okay. After Josh did not call you on Sunday, June 11lth,
did that cause you any concern?

Yes, it did. .

When Josh did not cail you on Monday, June 12th, did that:
cause you any concern?

Yeah.

And where were you at this time?

I was at my parents’ houée. And he was supposed to fly
out in like two days, and he had been calling me-- ‘Cause
that was the first time we were ever apart since we met,
and he had been calling me a couple times a day when I was

at my parents’ house, ’‘cause my mom was like, you know, he
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Q.

A.

Q.

sure calls you a lot. And so it was weird, like-- ’cause
he called me on Nick’s-- from the barter fair Friday, and
the phone cut off, and he called me back, and he cailed me
on Saturday and the phone cut off and he never called me
back. So I just figured maybe fhey were goofing around.
And I gave it a couple days. I didn’t know where he was.
I thought maybe they’d got in an accident.

Okay, when did you contact Josh Schaefer’s dad?

Tuesday, the 13th. The day he was supposed to fly in to
my house.

And what was the purpose of contacting him?

To ask-- To find out if Josh had contacted them, and to
tell them that I hadn’t heard from him.

And had he-- After you talked toAhim, did you know at
that time where they were?

No.

Did you subsequently, in trying to ldcate Josh sr what
might have happened, did you make a call to a Shauna
Daniels?

Actually, we called Brian. Tom got the number from the
police in Seattle about Nick--

Okay, and from that number--

For-- To Brian. To Brian Murphy.

And from Brian Mﬁrphy's number did you then get Shauna

Daniels’ number?
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A. Yeah, he gave it to me. He gave me her mom’s number.
. And who was Shauna Daniels?
. Nick’s girlfriend;.‘

Q. Then qnée you got'that number, did you then-- Were you
able to contact her? | |

A. Actually, I célled her mom, but I wasn’t able to speak
with her, ‘cause she had already been in hiding, and‘so
hef mom said that she would have to call me back, and she
did. |

Q. Okay, and when she called you béck, were you able to talk
to her?

A. Yes. |

Q. And what did she tell you? ' |

A. I asked her-- Well, after what Brian had told me that
they were in danger, and what he knew--

. Just-- Just what Shauna told you now. !

A. Okay. Shauna toldﬁ‘me-- I asked her if they could
truthfully be in any danger, and she said yes, you know,
and then she told me what had happened and--

Q. Did she tell you the story of what happened?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And what was the-- Did she tell you the real story or did
.she tell you-- What did she tell you?

A. She told me that they were-- they got caught with a bunch
of LSD, and they were actually making it.
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Q.
A.

Q.

Q.

A.

At the time they got caught?

Uh-huh. And she told me that-- I asked her if there were
people that could really be after him and that wbuld be
mad enough to go after Nick, and she said yes, and she
told me that, you know, he had been helping-- helping--
The federal people?

Yeah.

So you knew that he was working with the feds?

Uh-huh.

And did she say anything--

And I didn’t-- You know, we didn’t know anything till.
that point, so--

That was the first time you had heard that?

Oh, no. Brian told me first, aﬁd then Shauna.

And did Shauna say anything had happened to her--

Yeah.

--after the bust?

She tbld me-- Well, I asked her, you know, I said, well,
Nick said you broke up with him over a marijuana charge.
And she was like well, no, I have a restraining order
against him because I got a gun put to my head in Port-
land. And she said they said if you’re ever with Nick,
you’re going to die.

Is that the people that put the gun to her head?

Yes.
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Q.

A.

Q.

A‘

Q.

And did she know whovthose people were?

She said she didn’t. She didn’t know. She said she was
really scared. |

Did youlhave occasion then to call her at a later time?
Uh-huh. Yes. |

and-- I should say, maybe you called her and she called
you back? |
Uh;huh,

And when she called you back, what happéned?

Actually, she-- Her mom-- Her mother called my mom first
’cause they had been talking.

Okay, now, you can only say what she told you.

THE COURT: What Ms. Daniels-- ! .
What Ms. Daniels told you. éo then did you subsequently
get on the phone with Shauna after your parent-- after
both your moms talked? !
Yes.

And what did she say to you_at _that time?_  This_ second

4

©all?

‘She-told -me that—- . _She changed her. Story, and sShe waa

Like, you know:
@ don’t really want to have anything to dw
(with this, I’m really scared, so it didn’t
dappen.

And I was like:

What do you mean it didn’t happen?
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Sﬁﬁlﬁhé:ééfdf:ybﬁ;ﬁﬁaﬁfiwgié;ﬁééliiké if “you' know -who,
these-guys -are; -if-you-can -identify them, it’11 probébty
help,. you. know, tﬁy;;orfigure'out what’s going on. And .
éhe~waslliké;“1’just don’t want to deal with it.- ~She’s

lkike, I'm already out of heré, so it doesn’t matter. .

ol

Q. “How-did she appear to you in those calls?- What wasrherrf
Why was she not--.

A. Shé«appeared concerned, like she said she was sorry.
Eikér~1‘mrsorry,,you_know, that Josh ﬁeeded,to.beyin-
volved:

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor. I have no further
questions at this time.
THE COURT: All right, Mr. Simeone, any questions?

MR. SIMEONE: Yes, thank you, your Honor.
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KIMBERLY KERPIN

BY

Q.

CROSS EXAMINATION

MR. SIMEONE:

You-- Good afternoon-- or good morning, Ms. Kerpin.
Your phone call was cut off on Saturday, is that right?
Uh-huh.

And that’s the last time you heard from Josh?

Right.

You’re assuming he was calling you on Nick’s cell phone,
is that right?

Yeah.

Is it possible then that if the information shows that he
was killed the next day, that he would have called you
between that night and the next day, wouldn’t he?

Yeah. I know.

Is it very possible that something happened to him at that

time he didn’t call you back on Saturday?

I guess anything’s possible, you know.

But see, if I understand your testimony correctly, he’s
keeping in pretty good contact with you.

Right.

Didn’t you say several times a day?

I know, that’s why-- I mean something-- I don’t know.
Yeah. I’m not sure.

Okay. Now, I want to clarify. You said Family, and that
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|

word came out of your mouth pretty fast like you’re
familiar with the phrase. When you say Family, in your

testimony, are you referring to the Rainbow Family?

A. Yeah.

. Okay. It’s an_organization fou’ré familiar‘with?

A. Uh;huh.

. And we assume Josh was associated with it, Nick as weil?

A. Uh-huh.

. Okéy.

A. Yeah. Josh went to his first gathering like two years
ago. And he was just a sweet guy, you know. A lot of
people liked him.

0. And my condolences to you forlyour loss, as well, ma’an.
Is it correct that Nick got Josh to come to Seattle?

A. What’s that? I’m sorry.

. Is it correct Nick got Josh to come to Seattle then? '

A. Yes. |

Q. And was there-- You think that’s based upon a misrepre-
sentation about why? I mean it sounded to me like he--
am I right about the sense I’'m getting about your testimo-
ny?

A. For sure. Yéah, he was telling us it was a marijuana
charge. I don’t know why he would have lied, because I
thought they were-- You know, they didn’t know each other
too well, but they were pretty good friends.
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A.

Q.
A.
Q.
A.

Q.

A.

Yeah, I--

And they would consider each other friends.

I think I got a feel for what their relationship waé then.
Uh-huh.

Did--

I don’t know why he would lie. I don’t know.

Well, neither did I. Do you think--

I think he just needed somebody so bad, like he sounded so
sad on these thing-- on his messages.

Uh-huh.

And Josh is a good friend of his, and he knows it.

Were you aware--

Josh would help him.

--that there were ‘suspicions that, as a result of--
Strike that. As a result of Josh’s arrest, did he-- Do
you know of any suspicion that was heaped upon him that he
was cooperating with authorities? |

No. No, he made one statement while we were there, and
that’s it.

He was released from custody pretty fast though, wasn’t
he?

Uh-huh. I mean they realized that, you know, it wasn’t
our thing. It was theirs, and so--

Eut it was your house, wasn’t it?

Well, it was actually a friend of ours house, and we’d
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A.
Q.
A.

Q.

‘

only been staying the;e like a month. Like we moved in in
the middle of December, we left for Christmas and ﬁew
Year’s, and then wé-came back like a week into January.
So really like a month and a half.

And it was a meth laboratory? Is that how you.would
categorize it?

I guess, yeah.

Yod didn’t know anything about it--

Huh-uh.

--from the smells or anything else that were emanating
from it?

No. There were no smells. I mean they said they found
things in the closet, but there wasn’t like anything going
on in the house that we wouid know. Like I didn’t go
through these people’s closets. They were re-- Like they

were re-doing the house, like our friend did construction,

so, you know, a lot of the house-- the bottom part was-

tore up and there were bedrooms on the top, and we just
stayed up in our bedroom.

But in addition to that, didn’t they find LSD in your
house?

Yeah.

And that was linked to you and Josh, wasn’t it?

Well, a lit-- Some of it. They found like a tiny bit

that was Josh’s, that he said was his, that he, you know,
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did every once in awhile.

Q; When you say a tiny bit, what do you mean by that?

A. What do I mean by that? .

Q. Yéah, I mean how much, when you say tiny bit?

A. Well, they said they found a viél and it had like barely
anything in it. And they did find other, you know, LSD in
the house, and that wasn’t ours. Our friend, you know,
cléimed that and said it was his, and they right away
said, you know, these guys don’t have anything to do with
it;

Q. Did Josh give the authorities information that led them to
Nick Kaiser?

A. Excuse me?

Q. Did Josh give the authorities information--

A. Oh.

Q. Did he inform on Nick?

A. No, he didn’t inform on anybody. He just gave a stétement
about what was going on in the house. No, he didn’t have
to. I mean they didn’t need him to help with anything
or--

Q. Ané do you know-- Are you aware that his statement led to
thé arrest of an individual?

A. No} not-- How could that-- How is that related?

Q. I’? just asking you whether or not you know that informa-

tion Josh gave the authorities led to the arrest of an
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iﬁdividual? And is your answer to that no?

Of a individual, or--

Right.

-—Fick the individual?

No, not necessarily Nick.

Oh.

An individual.

Yes.

But we don’t know who that is though?

Okay.

It’s not Nick, is that what your testimony is?

No, I thought that’s what you were asking me.

You don’t think that’s why Nickllured Josh to Seattle?
No!way. Nick didn’t-- Like we don’t know hardly any of
Nick’s friends. We never came up here, you know, like he
on}y came to visit us a couple of times. He didn’t even
know any of our friends hardly. |

I ;ant to touch briefly dn—-

Like he was a basic-- You know. I mean he was a good
friend éf Josh’s, but they didn’t know each other like a
lot.

Thgy didn’t know each other a lot, but they were good
fr&ends?

JuFt from, you know, like if you meet somebody, you know

that they’re a friend of yours or they’re not a friend of
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A.
Q.
A.

Q.

i .
yours. And he would consider him a friend.

Well, it’s possible, I think, from your testimony tﬁat
Nick hadla motive to take revenge against Josh, because we
don’t really know who fhe arrested individual was, do we?
I'm sorry, I don’t understand the‘question.‘ |

1711 strike the question.

Okay.

About .the threats, I want to touch briefly on your
teStimonylhere. |

Okay.

About the threats that you talked or given-- talked about
were given to Shauna. You don’t know who the person
threatening herlwas, do you? ' |
No;

Okay. And Shauna-- Shauna said as well, she didn’t tell
you, is that your testimony? That she'didn’t know who' it
was? Are you aware-;‘

Right.

Are you aware that she knows my client, Mr. Grange?

No. I’ve never seen him before in my life.

You don’t know where the threats came from, either?

(No audible response)

I guess a follow-up question to that would be you don’t
|
kn?w who had put the gun to her head, because she never

toid you that?
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A.

Q.

Q.

A.

Q.

Right. She didn’t know.

She didn’t know?

But I told her if she could, you know, tell somebédy and
maybe try to identify him that that could help a lot. You
know, if something had happeﬁed and she might know
something.

Bué she didn’t know who it was?

No.

Shg didn’t know the person that did that, she didn’t know
the voice either?

Huh-uh. I mean, yeah, maybe she did, but she didn’t tell
nme.

Well she told you other things,lthough, at first, didn‘’t
she?

Yeah. Well maybe she didn’t know the people that did it.

'Yog know, I don’t know.

Right, it’s a speculative thing. Now, lastly, ére you
aware that Shauna gave a statement to the sheriffs wherein
shg said that there were no threats to her at all?

Yes. Uh-huh.

Okay.

Weil, she changed her statement, you know, two days after
I talked to her. She said, you know, I’m not going to say
that because I don’t want to be involved. And she was

already so far away I don’‘t think she, you know, wanted to
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A.
Q.

AI

Q.
A.

Q.

- |
deal with it. |
Yéah, but she had a little track record of giving you fhe
wfong ipformation there, didn’t she? First she said it
wés a marijuana bust? IIs that right?
Shauna? Shauna said this? No. I don’t understand what
yéu're asking ﬁe.
W&g Nick giving you;- You were getting some misinforﬁa—
tion from them. I’m not talking about just Shauna.
Yeah. Weldidn't know Shauna.
What I was saying-- I know. What I was saying, I think
it came from that source. You were getting some misin-
formation.
Uﬁ-huh. ' |
and she gave you misinformation too?
N&, she told me right away what was going on, like what
tﬁe real story was and what is the real story. Exactly
wﬂat Brian told me. 'Hé said, you know, call Shauna. This"
is what happened, she’ll tell you. I called her and she
tgld me, you know, they got in trouble for LSD, he was
wﬁrking, you know, helping out, and--
Rﬂght.

I mean that’s not misinformation.

i

N?, that isn’t. She corrected that story. But then she

tﬁld you about a threat and then she said there wasn’t any

tﬂreat.
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A. Yeah.

"MR. SIMEONE: Okay, I have no further questions. Thank

you.

' THE COURT: All right, Mr. Wetle, any redirect?

MR. WETLE: Yes, your Honor.

Kimberly Kerpinw- Cross (by Mr. Simeone)

1293.

Judy Americk
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KIMBERLY KERPIN

REDIRECT EXAHINATION.

BY MR. WETLE:

Q.

And why did she change her story?

MR. SIMEONE: Your Honor, I‘'m going to'object as to
speculative.

THE COURT: Sustained.

Thé people that got arrested out of the arrests in-- at
y;ur house, was one of the people that'wés living with
yéu?

ves.

And so the statements were as to Mr. Watkins’ involvement?
Up-huh. ' |

ATd also as to the other pefsqn, Mr. Ashworth, rand he
h?s-- |

MR. SIMEONE: Your Honor, the question’s ambiguous. I
dén't know' what reférence he’s making right now.

" THE COURT: I know. It’s true, Mr. Wetle.

i MS. KERPIN: Yours are too.
i
| THE COURT: You have way more background than any of
tﬁe rest of us on this issue. I don’t know what you’re--
| MR. WETLE: The question was a follow-up of cross, your
Honor.
THE COURT: I realize that, but I can’t tell what

ydu're asking, so maybe you could break it down.

Kimberly Kerpin - Redirect (by Mr. Wetle) 1294,

Judy Americk
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MR. WETLE: Okay.
Wére other people arrested as a result of that seizure‘of
tﬁe items in the héuse?
Aﬁd.were those people also paftially prosecufed becaﬁse of
statement that Josh made?
Yes, but he already"knew his involvement.
Mr: Watkins? '
Ué¥huh.
A?d as to Mr. Ashworth? The statements made about Mr.
A%hworth? Were they made by Josh that incriminated Mr.
Ashworth?
No. They had already-- You know, they already knew what
Mr. Ashworth was up to. Likelthey had been watching him
for awhile. |
Aﬁd you didn’t know whether Josh had made statements,
f%rtherstatements, incriminating Mr. Ashworth?

MR. SIMEONE: VYour Honor, I‘m going to object to the
héarsay part of that.

MR. WETLE: That would be a declaration against
iﬁterest, possibly, your Honor.
THE COURT: Well, I’m not sure it’s hearsay in that
it’s not offered to prove the truth of whatever Mr.

Schaefer said but, in fact, whether or not he said

aﬁything, if this witness knows. So I’ll overrule the

Kimberly Kerpin - Redirect (by Mr. Wetle) 1295.
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Q.
A.

Q.

t

I
obsjection. Ms. Kerpin-- Would you clarify with the
witness whether or not she even knows there was any
information given about an Ashworth?

| MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: By Mr. Schaefer.

Do you know if in the statement that Josh gave to the DEA
pgople down there that he made any incriminating state-
ménts about Mr. Ashworth?

MR. SIMEONE: Wait a minute, your Honor. I thought the
clarification was supposed to be whether or not she even
knew that there was a statement.

E THE COURT: That’s true, Mr. Wetle. You want to
réstate your question-- rephrase your question, please?
Wés a statement givén by Josh to the DEA?

Yes.

Aﬁd do you know if in the statement there were incriminat-
ing things about Mr. Ashworth that Josh said?

Yéah.

There were?

Uh-huh. But it was about things, you know, that they
a?ready had-- they already Kknew.

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.

Like he was right there. You know, he was right there.
MR. WETLE: Thank you. I have no further questions,

your Honor.

Kimberly Kerpinu— Redirect (by Mr. Wetle) 1296.
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MR. SIMEONE: Your Honor, I do.

THE COURT: All right.

Kimberly Kerpin_— Redirect (by Mr.

Wetle) 1297.
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KIMBERLY KERPIN

BY

v RECROSS EXAMINATION
MR. SIMEONE:

Would it surprise you to know that a DEA agent said that
J?sh gave information that was‘directly related to the
afrest of an individual down there? and I’m not talking
about your roommate.
I;m sorry. What was the question?
Would it surprise you to know that a Drug Enforcement
aéent said that Josh gave information that was directly
rélated to the arrest?
The only statement I know that he made was against Watkins
and Ashworth.
Sé that would surprise you to hear that then from the DEA
agent, wouldn’t it? '
sure.

| MR. SIMEONE: No further questions.

WITNESS STEPS DOWN BUT IS NOT EXCUSED

COURT RECESSED

Kimberly Kerpin - Recross (by Mr. Simeone) 1298.
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COURT RECONVENED WITH JURY SEATED

- THE COURT: Mr. Wetle, you may call your next witness.
( .
MR. WETLE: Thank ,you, your Honor. We would call

-Jénell,Clarke.

WITNESS IS SWORN
;'THE COURT: And if you’ll give us, speaking right into‘
thaﬁ microphone, yoﬁr full name, please, for the recofd?
i MS. CLARKE: Janell Clarke.

'THE COﬁRT: And, Ms. Clarke, I'’m going fo ask you spell
ybur first and last names, please.

MS. CLARKE: J-A-N-E-L-L C-L-A-R-K-E.

THE COURT: Thank you, and_ your current address,
please, for the record? | ‘ |

MS. CLARKE: P. 0. Box 1322-- Actually, you probably
have another address.

THE COURT: Whatever your current address is at this
point. ' |
; MS. CLARKE: P. O. Box 1322, KettleAFalls, Washington.
% THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Wetle, you may inquire.

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.

JANELL CLARKE Being first duly sworn, on

' , oath testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. WETLE:

Q. Good morning, Ms. Clarke. Could you please state your

Janell Clarke - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1299.
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occupation for the court and for the jury?

A. ﬁousecleaner and landscape person. Gardener.
Q. 4nd where did you live before coming to Stevens Céunty?
A. éashon, Washington.
Q. And when did you arrive in Stevéns County?
A, iune 1st, last--
. You--
A. Two thousand.
. #wo thousand? And where did you stay when you came?
A. 4then and Andrea Cameron’s, Kettle Falls.
Q. And was Dane Williams living at home then?
A. ﬁo. He had his own cabin.
. énd was that-- Was that close or near or far or--
A. ﬁes, within one to two miles. |
Q. éere you aware that there was a barter fair being held on
éhe weekend of June 10th and 11th?
. And did you go to that barter fair?
A. ﬁes.
. And when did you go to the barter fair?
A. Qn Sunday.
. And who did you go to the barter fair with?
A. With Dane Williams.
Q. Had you-- Were you thinking about going on Saturday, the
10th?
Janell Clarke -‘Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1300.

Judy Americk
762 8. Pine
Colville, WA 99114
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Yes.

Apd what happened on Saturday?

Just-- I had asked Dane to go with me. I was new to the
area and wanted someone to go with me, and we were going
tb go on Saturday afternoon. it just got too late and
decided to go on Sunday instead.

A#d the reason that you asked Dane to go with you was
what?

Friendship, companionship. Just to spend a little time
wifh him.

Héd you ever been to the barter fair before?

Oﬁce or twice before.

And who drove to the barter fair?

I did.

Do you remember what time that you left the Camerons’,
about?

The best that I can remember, about noon-ish.

and did you go directly then to the barter fair?

Yes.

When you arrived at the barter fair with Dane, can you
rgcall what happened?

Y%s. We-- We drove into the parking lot, took a left,
pérked my car. We got--

N%w, is the parking lot before you would go into the-- 1Is

|
there a gated area or is there a--

Janell Clarke -"Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1301.
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A.
Q.
A,
Q.

A.

Q.

Q.

ves.

gou don’t drive into the actual--

No.

T—barter fair?

ﬁo. It would be 1like going'to any sort of a fair where
there is a gated entrance. So there’s a parking lot, and
so I-- For the day people, who are there just for the day
dsé. Park the car, and then you have a-- you know, an
entrance gate up, you know, so far from thé parking lot.
Is there a fee, then, to pay to get in?

Uh-huh.

?kay. So let’s just go back to when you pulled into the
%arking lot. What did you do as you pulled 'into the
parking lot? |

Pulled into the parking lot, parked my car, got out. Both
dane and I got out. I went to open up my-- the back' of
Ay car to get my things out to take to the barter fair,:
énd-- and Dane saw someone, which was Chewy, and they--
Ae said that he had forgot his money and would hook up
%ith me later. And they took off.

|
Okay, so this all happens in the parking lot at the barter

fair?

Yeah, with just--~ within the first few minutes. And I
qidn't pay much attention to it. 1I-- At first I was a
iittle disappointed because I-- I invited Dane to go with

Janell Clarke - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1302.
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A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.

A.

mé and I would pay his way, and then I thought oh, well;

you know, it’s just a kid being a jerk, and so I kinda

just dismissed it and I thought I’d see him 1ater; and I

went and paid and went into the barter fair.

okay, when you say then he went with Chewy, do you Kknow

wpere they went or what they did?

No.

Do you know if they left the barter fair?

ngl, they never came in to the barter fair. That’s--
THE COURT: One moment.

MS. KERPIN COMES INTO COURTROOM AND IS ASKED
BY THE COURT TO REMAIN OUTSIDE

THE COURT: Go ahead. I’m sorry, Mr. Wetle. Would you
restate your question so the witness can restate her
ansvwer?

' MR. WETLE: oh, boy. Was it--
Did you-- Oh, yes. How did you Know-- Did you see them
then in the barter fair after that?
No.

and did you see Dane any time after that?

N

>

2

I
nd did you see Chewy any time after that?
I
)

pid you know what vehicle Chewy drives?

A Ford Bronco.

Janell Clarke - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1303.
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Q.

A.

Q.

What was going on at the barter fair ﬁhen you arrived?
Well, it was Sundaylafternoon and people were startinglto
pack up, though it was still going on. There wasn’t-- It
had that feel of starting to die down a bit, I guess.
Had you ever met Jeff Cunnlngham prlor to the barter fair?
yes .

And how about John drange, nicknamed Chewy?

Yes.

Apd do yoﬁ remember when you met them?

S?y that again?

Do you remember when you met them?

Jeff I met last winter. Chewy I met the day that I
arrived at Ken and Andrea’s. ' .

Sb the first part of June?

Uh-huh.

Do you know who was living at the Crown Creek cabin the
week leading up to the June 10th, 11th barter fair?

As far as I know, it was Jeff and Chéwy.

At the time-- When you went into the barter fair, do you
recall how long you stayed there on Sunday, June 11th?
Approximately four or five hours, 1eavin§ there about 5:00
ér 6:00. |

%nd did you meet anybody at the barter fair before you

left? A friend that gave you a ride from the barter

fair?

Janell Clarke - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1304.
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A.
Q;
A.
Q.

A.

i

Yes, I gave Maija a ride.
And who is Maija?
Who is Maija?

I

Wbat's her last name?

I:don't know Maija’s last name. Ceecee or something like
that.

Close. And did you give Maija a ride from the barter
fair?

Yes. I saw her at the barter fair and recognized her, and
spe recognized me, and she asked me if I could give her a
ride. She wanted to go ‘up to the Crown Creek cabin, and
I:was more than happy to take her and her dog up there,
since I was going there, close by.

Okay, so what happened when you got up near the Crown
Céeek cabin?

Well, we got to a certain point on the road and she
advised there’s kind of a turn around place that'I stop
trere because she didn’t think that my car would make
that, the rough ride into the cabin, so I turned around
and she walked onto a little path across-- I guess
across the creek, up to the cabin.

Okay, now, that’s down below from the actual driveway?
Y?ah.

You never went up to the driveway?

Yeah, the-- the driveway continues-- I guess that would

Janell Clarke - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1305.
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be north a little bit, and curves aroﬁnd, and there’s--

on Crown Creek Road is where it’s still fairly flat énd

easy to drive on. There’s a little turn-around, or place

tﬁat you can turn youf car around, and that’s whéfe I

d;opped her off. | |

Aﬁd that would be, based on where the Crown Creek Road
| o

gbqs, probably one of the closest spots to the cabin, when

you’re on the Crown Creek Road, where that turn-around is?

Thé closeét spot? |

To the cabin. Because if you go up to the driveway, you

h%ve to go further up the Crown Creek Road, don’t you?

Ibm not sure on that.

Okay. ‘ ‘ :

But I do know that that is a place to turn around.

Ahd then she walked up to the cabin from there?

Uh-huh.

Could ybu see--

Yes. |

éan you see the cabin from the road?

No.

Do you know approximately what time that would have been,

Sased on your recollection?

1If we left the barter fair between 5:00 and 6:00, then it

%ould make it between 6:30 and 7:00. Somewhere close to

that time that I dropped her off. Somewhere between that

Janell Clarke - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1306.

Judy Americk
762 S. Pine
Colville, WA 99114
(509) 684-2267




O 00 NN N n

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.

Q.

A.

Q.

A.

time.

And those are~-- that’s an estimate?

Yes. ‘ ‘

Then where did you'go éfter you dropped her off?

To the Camerons’ house. | ' |

And just-- What did you do after you got to Camerons’?
I went to bed. I was not feeling well. |
When you say then you went to bed, how far is your--
where you'were staying away from the Camefonlhouse proper?
I had a little room in the barn, and from their house to
the barn would be-- Approximately from the house to the
gate, I’m going to guess a 150 yards. And then from the
gate down into the barn, almost that much distance again.
So could someone come into the Camerons’ or Dane’s, going
up the Hamlet Road to Dane’s, could they get there without
you knowing that they had gone to either place? The
Cameron house or Daﬁe’s cabin?

Yes.

When you’re at the barn?

If one is paying attention, yes, you can-- you can see
§ctivity. In my condition, in bed, no.

Did you go to fhe Crown Creek cabin after the barter fair?
Yes.

And why did you go there?-

out of concern of what happened to these kids.

Janell Clarke - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1307.
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Q. And can you elaborate on that?

A. Yes. Andrea and I went up there wondering why Dane, Chewy
and Jeff had disappeared, and we-- we went up thére out
of curiosity.

Q. Did YOu have to assume any responsibilities when they
1;ft?

A. I’m not--

Q. Were you caring for any of their animals?

A. Yes.

Q. What happened with respect to that?

A. There were two puppies and each boy had a dog, so there
were five dogs that were left. I mean that was-- that
was where we first became concerned. Here’s these dogs
wandering the neighborhood and no one taking care of thenm,
and so two of the dogs, Chewy and Dane’s dogs, stayed with
Ken and Andrea and were cared for by Ken and Andrea and
m&self, and Maija took Jeff’s dog. And the two pﬁppies,
I can’t remember. I think that they were taken to the
pound or found homes.

Q. What did you think about the cabin when you got up there?
What did you observe?

A. It had a very cold, awful feeling.

Q. Wﬁy?

A. T% me it just felt like a place that hadn’t been cared for

in many, many years. Lots of garbage laying around and--

Janell Clarke -“Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1308.
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| _
| .
Q. wére there items there at the cabin?
A. Were there persona; items? VYes, that was-- That was fhe
first thing that alerted or, you know, concerned me, was
that these boys héd léft items, personal items, in the
home, in their cabin. | |
| MR. WETLE: Thank you, Ms. Clarke. We have no-- I
have no further queétions, your Honor. |
THE COURT: all right, Mr. Simeone?

MR. SIMEONE: Thank you.

Janell Clarke - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1309.
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JANELL CLARKE

BY

A,

Q.

A.

Q.

Q.

CROSS EXAMINATION

MR. SIMEONE:

Ms. Clarke, good morning. If I understand your statement
téday correctly, you saw Dane and John, is that right,
wﬂen you got to the fair?

I was with Dane.

And then you saw him with John?

As I stated earlier, I-- I arrived at the barter fair, we
p?rked the car-- Do you want me to repeat this?

NB, but you saw him with John. That’s the only question
I want you to answer.

Yes.

Now, you made a statement to the police on October 12th,
didn’t you?

Yes, I did.

And that was to Captain Webb, LaVonne Webb?

Uh-huh. |

and you also had discussed at that time your trip to the
barter fair, right?

Yes.

MR. SIMEONE: May I approach the witness, your Honor?
THE COURT: Yes.

|
} .
| MR. SIMEONE: Let’s mark this .

In the meantime, why don’t you look at this .

Janell Clarke - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1310.
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Q.

A.

Q.

Showing you what’s marked as Defendant)s Exhibit 111, Ms.
Ciarke, would you identify what that document says it is?
Please bg clear what' you’re asking me.
Can you identify the tob of the document, what it séys it
ié? What does it say that if is? |
There’s many things. What are you asking me to say?
Dbgs it say that it’s Stevens County Sheriff'’s Office
Additional Information Report?
It says IStevens County Sheriff’s Office Additional
Information Report. |
And it’s dated there, is it, Ms. Clarke, October 12th?
ves.
okay, is that-- and that’s the date you did your inter-
view with Captain Webb? !
Yes.
ORay, I want ybu to briefly look down at the dialogue that
you appear-- that aépears on the follbwing pages and see
whether or not that seems to you to bé a transcription of
the interview you had with Detective Webb, or Captain
w§bb, I should say.

| MR. WETLE: Your Honor, may I voir dire the witness?

THE COURT: All right.

Janell Clarke - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1311.
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VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY MR. WETLE:

Q. Ms. Clarke, was this a tape recorded statement or is this
just Captain Webb’s handwrittén notes that got tran-
scribed? Do you know?

A. They were handwritten notes.

. So there was no tape recorder?

A. No.

MR. WETLE: Your Honor, we’d say that the document
itself is just Captain Webb’s recollection of those
qustions and answers.

; MR. SIMEONE: Your Honor, I haven’t even tried to move
it into evidence yet.

THE COURT: Right. He’s not offered the exhibit. Go
ahead and review the exhibit, if you would, Ms. Clarke,
and we’ll have you review it and then we’ll wait for the
next question from Mr. Simeone.

All right, Mr. Simeone?

Janell Clarke -"Voir Dire (by Mr. Wetle) 1312.
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JANELL CLARKE

BY

CONTINUATION OF CROSS EXAMINATION
MR. SIMEONE:

Does that appear to be a review of the conversation you
had with Detective Webb that da?? Captain Webb?
Yes.
Okay. Do you remember that day that she asked you what
time you went to the barter fair, you told her you went
there probably around noon-ish?
Uh-huh.
Is that right? And on the second page, which is dates
marked 1092, that is the second page of the interview, do
you see about--

MR. SIMEONE: Can I approach the witness again, your
Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.
There’s a discussion there on the very top of tﬁe page
where you were living. That’s consistent with what you’re
séying now. You weren’t live-—- Dane was living at that
house. I’m sorry, strike that question. That Dane was
living-- wasn’t living at that house at that time. 1Is
that right?
D?ne was living in his own cabin.
o&ay, and you said Sunday--I'm reading down through the

transcript--you went to the barter fair around noon-ish.

»

Janell Clarke - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1313.
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A. Uh-huh.

Q. Do you see that on page 2?

A. Yes. |

Q. And you also-- Detective Webb asked you,

What did you do once ybu gof to the barter
fair?
Do you see that line?

A. Yes.

Q. A%d waé.your answer there that:

. I parked my car, he went one way, and I went
i the other?
Ig that correct?

A. This is to the best of my knowledge. All of it.

. asking, is that what you said at that time?

A. Yes.

Q. You said:

| I got out of the car and can’t ‘remember if
he saw a friend. I just went and paid and

| did my thing.

#s that also true?

A. Qes.

Q. dkay, now, the next line there, did Detective Webb ask you
whether or not you saw-- he saw friends? He, she’s
ﬁeferring to Dane there, wasn’t she?

A. Yes.

Q. Jnd you said:

Janell Clarke - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 1314.
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A.

I don’t remember; I Jjust remember pulling

in, getting out of the car, he was talking

to somebody. Someone, possibly the parking

lot. That’s my best recollection. I never .

saw him again.
I never saw him again.
BuUt you also said:

He went one way and I went the other.

THE COURT: Is that a question?

Is that right? He (sic) said he went one way and I went--
I went the other?
That is right.
Ahd at that time, on the next page you’ll see that she
also asked you questions about whetﬁer or not you Kknew
Chewy. And you said-- What was your answer to that?
Yes, I said that. Did you see Jéff and Chew-- well, I
m%an, what are-- what are you asking me?
I'm just asking you if you said you know Jeff and Chewy.
You knew them well enough to identify thenm. is that
right?
Yes.
But you never at that time said that Jeff met Chewy, did
you? I’m sorry, that Dane met Chewy, did you? You want
to take a minute to look at your statement again? Are we
QOing back to your testimony, ma’am, that this is all to
i

the best of your recollection?

Yes.

vé
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Now, you said that Dane would come by frequently to the
cabin, that is to the Cameron’s cabin, to use the phoﬁe.
Ié that porrect?
Yes.
And you really can’t distingﬁish one particﬁlar incident
when he came by to use the phone from another, can you?
Yeg, I can. |
You can recall all the incidents and all the occasion upon
which he went to the-- o
Ask me something specific.
Do you remember all specific days that he went to the
cébin, is what I’m asking you.
I feel like you’re confusing an issue here. ' |
I’m not trying to do that, ma’am, and I apologize'if you
think I am. I’m just trying--
Ask me a specific question. !
Yeah, the specific éuéstion—-

| THE COURT: All right, now, Ms..Clarke, hold on a
second. The question is do you remember all the specific
times that Mr. Williams came to the Cameron home.
No.
okay, because they were numerous. That’s what you said,

isn’t it?

A. This is Andrea’s son. Do you remember how many times your
child comes to visit you?
Janell Clarke - Cross (by Mr. Simeone) 131s6.
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MR. SIMEONE: Your Honor, I‘d ask for an instruction to
the witness.

THE COURT: All right, Ms. Clarke, you just ﬁeed to
answer the questions.

Q. There were numerous occasions, Qeren't there, Ms. Clarke?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, specifically, going back to the interview,
look on page 3, if you would, and your question was
whether or not you saw Jeff and Chewy at the barter fair.
That’s.the question she asked you. Was your answer to
that question no?

A. Ygs, it is.

Q. And going farther into the interview, if you’ll look on
page 1097, the question was:

When did you last see them?
The reference to them being Jeff, Dane and Chewy. And
your answer to that was: |

Last seen Dane at the barter fair. Jeff and
Chewy, probably somewhere around that time.

Is that correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And I think you said to the detective at that time that,

what did the person look like-- In answer to her ques-
|
tion:

What did the person look like that he, Dane,
talked to?

o
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Aand what is your answer to that, if ydu could share that
with the jury, please, ma’am? |
What are you asking me?

What is your answer tolthat question:

What did the person look like that he, Dane,
talked to?

I said:
I don’t even remember a person, if it was a
person.. Something distracted him and caused
him to go a different direction. ' '
Now, you have a 25 year relationship with the Camerons,
don’t you?
Yes.
And you have an allegiance td them based upon yhat long
term friendship, don’t you? |
(No audible response)
Is that yes?
I;have an allegiance to tell the truth.
Well, did you lie to Detective Webb?
I told to the best of my knowledge what I remembered.
And that was four months after the barter fair, right?

To you remember-- I mean, do you remember what you did

four months from today?
NB, my question is that statement was given four months

after the barter fair.

That’s right. Do you recall a private investigator--
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A.

THE COURT: Ms.'CLarke, unfortunatély sometimes, only
certain people get to ask the questions here. So-- |
Is your memory-- .

THE COURT: =--Mr. Simeone?

Is your memory better now, eight months aftér the barter
fair, than it was then?

Yes, I would say so.

And what made your memory change?

M?lmemory has not changed. At the timé éf this whole
ipcident, if this really matters to you, I will describe
in brief detail. I lost a mother in April. I almost lost
my father in January. I came tq the Camerons to try to
h%ve some time to take care of myself. I had my own
héalth issues, serious health issues. This can 'all be
documented. Within ten days of arriving, of my own trauma
and upset, I’'m faced with another trauma. And I think
it’s very normal to Qaht to just block it out. Chewy, I’m-
sbeaking the truth, and it's all documénted. This doesn’t
cpme out in an interview with detectives because it
doesn’t seem appropriate for me to share about my personal
situation. I did my very best, under a stressful situa-
tion, to give them the very best I could.

Ygu were trying to tell them the truth at that time,
weren’t you?

You certainly-- You’re right, I was. And as I am still.
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MR. SIMEONE: I have no further questions of the
|

witness.
THE COURT: All right, Mr. Wetle, any redirect?

MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.
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JANELL CLARKE

BY

MR. WETLE:

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

Mé. Clarke, you had given that statement to Ms. Webb, and

then did the defense’s investigatdr subsequently contact

you?

Yes, last Friday.

And do.you remember his name?.

[ .
Ralph. I don’t remember his last name.

Okay, and was it during his questions to you about what

happened that you were able to be more specific in terms

of who you saw in the parking.lot?

|
Yes.

MR. WETLE:

THE COURT:

Thank you very much.

All right, Mr. Simeone,

i MR. SIMEONE: MR. SIMEONE: Yes.

|
|
|
|
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JANEL% CLARKE

BY

Q.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

MR. SIMEONE:

wa is it that you knew that there was another trauma that
occurred ten days after you arrived?

I;m talking about having to go and talk to the police in
October.

But that’s not ten days after you arrived, though, is it?
The situation that we’re referring to happened ten days
1%ter.

Ygah, but how is it that you were dealing with a trauma
ten days after you arrived?

I feel like you’re picking at words here. I did my best
just now to describe a situation of what was going on for
me around that time.‘

Aight, but I want to clarify something, Ms. Clarke, and
that is that you did not know of any trauma that oécurred
ten days after you arrived.

When I--

Isn’t that correct?

@hen I’m staying with the Camerons, and there are five

l
dogs running loose in the neighborhood, and these-- and

|

these three boys have not returned, it makes me wonder

|

what happened. 1It’s an-- You know--

Well--
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If’s--

Sorry. You’re not answering my question. All that aside,
y?u didn’t know of a particular t;auma-—

Ng, of course not.' |

In fact, you gave DetectiQe Webb that étatement in
oétober, didn’t you? That’s not June. Isn’t that right?
Y:es . | |
So there’s not a trauma going on at the time you gave her
thét statément, is there? |

It you are stating that I should just be over what I was
feeling from my mother and my dad, I-- You know, I--
Don’t make that judgment about me.

Well, it’s not a ten day trapma, then. You’re talking
about something four months after your arrival, isn’t that
right?

IYm talking about what happened in my personal life. ‘
Wés there a phone c%ll from Rob Schuitz to the Camerons
that you’re aware of around that time?

I‘don't know Rob Schultz.

W;s there a phone céll from a person named-- I’m not
asking you if yoﬁ know him. Was there a phone call from
a person named Rob Schultz to Ken Cameron’s house saying
He's sorry that he brought heat down on the area?

ﬂ'm not aware of that.

You never heard that?
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I'am not aware of that.
Isn’t that the trauma you’re talking about, that informed
you, advised you, that there was a trauma? |
I feel like you’re using that-- that-- that word out of--
I’m going with your testiﬁony, ma’am.

THE COURT: And, 'Ms. Clarke, you can just answer yes or
no to that particular question.
Ask me the question again, please.
WFs that the trauma ybu. were referring to, that Rob
Skhultz called and said he-- sorry I brought heat down on
ybur area, and then a trauma arose as a result of that
ayareness in the Cameron home?
f don’t know how to answer this question.
Well, you could answer it yes oOr no.
I MR. WETLE: Your Honor, I’d object as to hearsay as to
Qhat Rob Schultz said. Might have said.

THE COURT: Well, the witness may answer yes|or no,
whether she was aware of any such phone call.
io the best of my memory, I’m not aware of the phone call.

MR. SIMEONE: No further questions.

WITNESS IS EXCUSED

THE COURT: Mr. Wetle, let’s go ahead with a little bit

of one-- I do need to recess right at noon today, but if

| _
we want to get started with someone, we could do that. Do

you have someone you could get started with?

el
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MR. WETLE: I can call Troy Phillips.

COURT ADVISES JURY OF TRIAL SCHEDULE
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WITNESS IS SWORN

THE COURT: If you’d give us your full name, pleaseé
MR. PHILLIPS: Troy Eugene Phillips.
THE COURT: All right, and, Mr. Phillips, how do you
s?ell your last name? | |

..MR. PHiLLIPS: P-H-I-L-L-I-P-S.

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Phillips, I need, for fhe

record, your address. P. O. Box is fine.

f.MR. PHILLIPS: 383, Northport, Washington.
l WITNESS IS REQUESTED TO RAISE HIS VOICE
THE COURT: Mr. Wetle?

; MR. WETLE: Thank you, your Honor.

TROY EUGENE PHILLIPS Being first duly sworn, on

BY
Q.

A.

oath testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. WETLE:

Good morning, Mr. Phillips.

Morning.

@ ADJUSTMENTS TO MICROPHONE

éould you please state for the court and the jury your
éccupation?

éartender at the White Bird.

And how long have you been up there bartending?

Tour years.

Do you remember the weekend of June 8th to June 11th, the
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Judy Americk
762 S. Pine
Colville, WA 99114
(509) 684-2267




\OOO\IO\UI-F-U)N—-‘

I\)NNNNN——a—-—A-—A-A—-A.—-i_a._.._.
LII-&WN'—‘O\DW\IO‘\M#WN'—‘O

|

barter fair last summer?

A. Yeah, I do.

Q. And were you working that weekend?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. S@ what’s your regular shift on the weekend?

A. S#x to closing.

Q. 0% Friday, Saturday and Sunday?

A. Yés.

Q. &and closing is?

A. Trree o’clock in the morning, 3:30.

Q. Dﬁrect your attention to, specifically, Sunday, June 11th.
ﬁere you working on that night?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. And what shift were'you working?

A. Six to 3:00.

Q. éo you remember-- or do you know a Dane Cameron or Dane
&illiams?

A. VYes, I do.

Q. And do you remember him coming into the White Bird Tavern

éhat weekend?

|

I
A. %es.

Q. énd do you have any specific recollection as to the day
[
that he came in?

A. Yes, it was Sunday, June 1l1lth.

Q. Any-- Anything specific that reminds you about that, or--

Troy Eugene Phillips - Direct (by Mr. Wetle) 1327.

Judy Americk
762 S. Pine
Colville, WA 99114
(509) 684-2267




O 00 N O wn A~ W -

NNNNNN»—-H-—-—du—d-—tu—A-—-.—A—a
LII-PWN'—‘O\DW\]C\M-QUJN'—‘O

A. Yeah, we have free'pool on that day.

Q. Free pool?

A. Yes. ‘

Q. W?en he came in that niéht, did he have anybody with'him?
A. Yes, there were three of theﬁ. ' |

Q. There were three of them all together?

A. Y%ea‘h. |

Q. So it’d be Dane and two others?

A. Ygé.

Q. DP you remember what you did thét night with any of those

individuals?

A. I played pool-- a game of pool with Dane.

THE COURT: I'm sorry, I didn’t hear thats .
x":TLpTa7§a=a—qamé=af=pﬁai”ﬁifﬁ”ﬁiﬁ@“ '
; /EHE—€C GURT“=:=¥eu—1ﬁﬁnﬂﬂf*'*ﬂ§&m9=<ﬁi_pgoi=guL;n==3= I’m
A. —banes=
THE COURT T —You=did2————=—
A. €s=
THE-COURT+—=0kay-—Thank-you-
Q. Do you remember whether it was a busy night or a non-busy
night that pérticular night?
A. éind of slow.
Q. ﬁow long do you think that Dane and his friends stayed

that night?
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1

A couple hours. About two hours.

A.
Q. And do you remember who paid?
A. Déne, I believe.
Q. Any particular thing that makes you remember--
A. Hg paid cash. | |
Q. OFay, does he--
A. HL-— Guy come up and talked to me for a little bit, and
then they left.
Q. A%d can you identify who the other two males were?
A. They didn’t look familiar to me. Never seen them before.
Q. Okay. Is that the extent of your involvement in this
éarticular incident?
A. Yes.
MR. WETLE: _Thank you very much. Your Honor, I have no
further questions.
THE COURT: All right, Mr. Simeone?
:
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TROY EUGENE PHILLIPS

BY
Qo
A-

Q.

CROSS EXAMINATION

MR’ SIMEONE:

Y$u knew Dane pretfy well then, did you, Mr. Phillips?

Yéah. | | |

O#éy, so no question about his identity?

No. |
MR.' SIMEONE: I’'ve got no  further questions, Thank

o

| THE COURT: All right, Mr. Wetle, any redirect?

MR. WETLE: No, your Honor.

i WITNESS IS EXCUSED

| COLLOQUY REGARDING SCHEDULE ' |

COURT RECESSED FOR LUNCH
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